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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$90.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), compared to
a revenue of approximately HK$277.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. It was mainly attributable to the commission
income from provision of Debt Capital Market (“DCM”) services of
approximately HK$39.5 million. The net loss before income tax for
the Year was approximately HK$133.8 million as compared to the
net loss before income tax of approximately HK$103.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The loss was mainly attributable
to the significant decrease in revenue from the provision of DCM
services in the difficult operating environment of China US dollar
bonds market.

The net loss after income tax for the Year was approximately
HK$133.9 million as compared to the net loss after income tax of
approximately HK$106.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year was approximately HK0.80 cents (31 December 2022:
basis loss of approximately HK0.67 cents).

Economy Review

For the Year, led by the inbound tourism and private consumption,
the Hong Kong economy continued to gradually recover. The real
GDP for the Year resumed growth of 3.2%, following a contraction
of 3.7% in 2022. Together with lots of government’s efforts to
promote mega events and launch various activities, such as the
‘Night Vibes Hong Kong' campaign, Hong Kong’s inbound tourism
struggles to return to pre-pandemic levels and the local private
consumption further increased.

In Hong Kong, though the unfavorable external environment, the
labor market gradually improved alongside the recovery of the local
economy. The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate stayed at
2.9% in the fourth quarter 2023. The government has implemented
the Quality Migrant Admission Scheme. The government intends
to strategically entice businesses in the life and health technology,
artificial intelligence and data science, financial technology,
advanced manufacturing and talented persons to settle in Hong
Kong in order to enhance Hong Kong’s economic competitiveness.

For the Year, the value of total exports of goods decreased by 7.8%
over 2022. Concurrently, the value of imports of goods decreased
by 5.7%. Exports and imports trade were adversely affected by the
weaker performance of the global economy and various external
unfavorable factors. The difficult external environment will continue
to pose pressures on Hong Kong'’s exports of goods for the year to
come.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Amid the credit rating down-grades, geopolitical tensions,
continuing high interest rate, the local stock market dropped
significant as investor sentiment getting worse. For the Year, the
Hang Seng Index opened at 19,570 points and closed at 17,047
points at the end of the Year, The Federal Reserve raised the fed
funds rate during its monetary policy meetings in 2023, pushing
borrowing costs to the highest level since 2007. Hong Kong’s
property market was falling alongside with the significant downward
price adjustment under deluge of poor investment appetite and high
interest rate.

Due to the high US dollar financing costs and intensified credit risks
of Chinese property developer, the issuance of Chinese offshore
bonds continued the downward trend for the Year. For DCM market,
the China offshore bonds market was continuously supported by
the refinancing needs. However, the tightening of bond issuance,
continued credit turmoil of the Chinese property developers and
higher offshore financing costs led to the sharp decline in the new
issuance amount. A great number of property and Chengtou issuers
has decreased in the China offshore US dollars bonds market.
Moreover, if there is no significant improvement in liquidity and
access to refinancing channels, some property developers, private
enterprises and government will face heightened default risk.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

Brokerage & margin financing

The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”). CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities)
and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities and futures
dealing was approximately HK$5.3 million (31 December 2022:
HK$8.5 million) and the interest income from the securities margin
financing was approximately HK$9.2 million (31 December 2022:
HK$13.1 million). The Group will maintain its prudent credit
policy and risk management approach with a view to achieve a
sustainable business environment.

Debt capital market business

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is carrying on business in type 1 (dealing
in securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

In recognition of the robust potential in the China’s US dollar
bonds market, the Group have established a foothold and teamed
up to participate as a major player in this growing market in 2017.
The market is principally classified into, by industry four business
segments, namely industrial, property development, financial and
urban construction investment (“Chengtou”).

During the Year, the Group has so far participated in 31 debt
issues with roles of joint global coordinator, joint book-runner,
joint lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate issue size
of approximately US$2,284.3 million as at 31 December 2023.
The debts are issued through either private or public offerings with
coupon rates ranging from 3.65% to 8.0% per annum. According
to the information published on Bloomberg 2023, CWSI ranked as
the 57th the manager in the issuance of offshore China bonds for
the Year based on the issuance volume credited to each involved
party. During the Year, the provision of debt capital market services
has recorded a commission income from placing of approximately
HK$39.5 million. The Group will continue to strengthen our
services in the coming period and broaden our service range with
an aim to provide one stop service to our customers.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Asset management

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited (“CWAM”). CWAM s incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group engages in the provision of investment
management services on diversified and comprehensive investment
products including private funds and discretionary accounts to
individual, corporate and institutional clients. Currently, our
investment fund, namely the Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“CWIF”), mainly focus on the China’s bond market as it is the
second largest bond market in the world and offers attractive yield
opportunities. It is expected that the market will continue to grow
and transform with the global economy. The Group believes it will
become more capital market oriented and open to foreign investors.
Besides, CWAM also served as an investment advisor for clients
providing advice on equity fund, fixed income funds and other
investment products.

About Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF is a segregated portfolio company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities in June 2018. CWIF has 3 segregated
portfolios as at 31 December 2023. The investment objectives
of CWIF are to achieve a high rate of return through capital
appreciation and seek fixed income returns with a high degree of
security.

Investment strategies

The investment manager seeks to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money market
funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and derivatives.
The portfolios now mainly invest in offshore US dollar denominated
bonds issued by Chinese institutions. The investment manager will
seek to diversify the investment portfolios when opportunities arise.

Fund growth

As at 31 December 2023, the assets under management have
reached approximately US$234.3 million (31 December 2022:
US$277.1 million). The management fee income is approximately
HK$14.1 million during the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index starts at 19,570 points and
closed at 17,047 points. The local stock market performs badly,
the Group recorded unrealized losses on equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$5.4 million. The interest income from debt investments
amounted to approximately HK$0.7 million.

Money lending business

The Group’s Money lending business is conducted through an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely Top
Billion Finance Limited (“Top Billion”), which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and holds a valid Money Lender
License under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of the law
of Hong Kong).

Top Billion is principally engaged in carrying out money lending
business by providing secured and unsecured loans to its
customers. Through the business and social networks of the senior
management of the Company, Top Billion would identity and be
referred potential customers which would corporate and individual
customers with personal wealth. Top Billion would then assess the
credit and risk of such potential customers based on its credit policy
and procedure.

Top Billion is operated and managed by members of its senior
management and under the supervision of the executive directors
of the Company, who have years of experience in accounting,
corporate development and/or financial management and have
overseen the business operations of Top Billion.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 14 outstanding loans
to individual customers with an aggregate principal amount of
approximately HK$421,611,400 and interest rates ranging from
5% to 7% and 5 outstanding loans to corporate customers with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$75,700,000 and
interest rates of 7% (collectively, the “Outstanding Loans”). The
Company has complied with the relevant requirements set out in
Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
grant and renewal of the Outstanding Loans. The Company does not
have any agreement, arrangement, understanding or undertaking
(whether formal or informal and whether express or implied) with a
connected person of the Company with respect to the grant of the
Outstanding Loans.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Further details of the Outstanding Loans are set out below: ERREERERZE-TFBHINWNOT :
Principal
amount Interest rate Tenure  Security
Borrower BRA rEEH kS HR R
(Note 1) (HK$'000)  (per annum) (months)
(Bi%E1) (F&xT) (8%) (A)
(Note 2)
(FaE2)
Individual customers ~ fAAE P
A A 10,000 7% 60  Equity interest in unlisted Hong Kong Entities
7,000 7% 60 FEMEBEBHBRAER
5,000 7% 60
50,000 7% 60
B B 19,700 7% 24 Residential property in Hong Kong
BEENEEYE
C C 15,000 7% 24 Residential property in PRC
R E
D D 16,000 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BENMLTMES
E E 75,000 7% 36 Commercial property in PRC
REIREEDE
F F 75,000 7% 36 Residential and commercial property in PRC
hENEEREENE
G @ 75,000 7% 36 Equity interests in unlisted PRC entities
FEMREEBNRAES
H H 8,000 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BN LMES
| [ 65,000 7% 36 -
J J 623.7 5% 12 -
K K 287.7 5% 12 -
Corporate customers /A A ®F
L L 50,000 7% 24 -
M M 12,500 7% 24 Listed securities in Hong Kong
BB EMES
N N 8,000 7% 24 Residential property in Hong Kong
BEENETME
O O 4,800 7% 12 Equity interest in unlisted Hong Kong
FEMERERBOBAES
400 7% 12
Total st
19 19 497,311.4
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

FEwE MEIE BT kT

Notes:

The borrowers are independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The principal and interest of the loans are repayable upon the
maturity date.

The majority of the existing customers were referred by executive
Directors of the Company. The executive Directors have good
business and social networks and would refer potential customers
to Top Billon Finance Limited (“Top Billion”) from time to time.
However, Top Billion does not rule out walk-in customers so long
as they can fulfil the due diligence and relevant credit assessment
requirements.

Benc

hmarks for Customers

Top Billion has the following benchmarks for its customers:

Corp

orate customers
No specific requirement that the prospective borrower should
be from a particular industry.

The prospective borrower can have its principal business
operation in Hong Kong, China or overseas.

No minimum amount of revenue/profit required to be
generated by the prospective borrower in the last 12 months.

The prospective borrower should normally have an sufficient
amount of assets enough to cover the loan principal when
they make the loan application. The assets can be in the form
of property, securities, or equity interest in an entity.

The prospective borrower should have a minimum operation
history of three years.

No litigation or winding up records.

Individual customers

10

The prospective borrower should be over the age of 18.

No requirement on the prospective borrower’s occupation or
minimum monthly income.

The prospective borrower should normally have an sufficient
amount of assets enough to cover the loan principal when
they make the loan application. The assets can be in the form
of property, securities, or equity interest in an entity.

No criminal or bankruptcy records.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Credit Policy and Procedures

Top Billon has set up a credit committee (the “Credit Committee”)
which comprises two executive Directors of the Company to
monitor the credit policy and procedures of the money lending
business.

The executive Directors who are members of the Credit Committee
are responsible for overseeing the money lending business. The
financial controller of the Company is responsible for working out
the preliminary terms of the proposed loan and is engaged in the
post-loan monitoring.

Pre-approval due diligence

Top Billion will take reasonable steps to establish the potential
customer’s true and full identity, financial situation and borrowing
objectives. The potential customer will be required to provide
further details of its personal and/or corporate background, proof
of repayment capabilities, proposed loan amount and repayment
method, proof of property ownership (if applicable) and bank
account and/or financial portfolio statements. Preliminary
verification of background information (bankruptcy check and
litigation check) of the potential customers will be performed.

Assessment and loan approval

For material lending transactions which constitute 5% or more
of the total assets of the Group, credit review procedures will be
conducted in accordance with the standard commercial practices
for the purpose of determining the ability of applicants in meeting
their financial obligations. Applications must in the first place,
satisfy certain credit requirements before being further processed
and reviewed by the senior management of Top Billion. Applicants
will be required to submit all information necessary for conducting
the reviews as requested by Top Billion, which includes but is not
limited to updated financial statements, assets and investment
portfolios of the customer.

The Credit Committee will review the due diligence results and the
loan proposal, together with the supporting documents, and then
finalise the loan amount and terms. Loan applications are assessed
and approved on a case-by-case basis in accordance with: (i)
the background of the applicant and whether the applicant has a
satisfactory record or any litigation record; (ii) whether the applicant
is a professional or has goodwill in his/her respective business or
social circles; (iii) whether the applicant has a good loan repayment
or credit record; and (iv) whether the applicant is a repeated
customer. If the outcome of the aforesaid background and financial
assessment is to the satisfaction of the Credit Committee, a meeting
will be arranged between the potential customer, a member of
the Credit Committee and/or the financial controller. During the
meeting, the financial controller will work out the preliminary terms
of the proposed loan.
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Apart from the provision of collateral, various other factors such
as whether the borrowers are repeated customers, their credibility,
the amount of the loan, the tenure of the loan, etc. will also
be taken into consideration when assessing the credit risk and
determining the loan terms (including interest rates). The lending
rate should commensurate with the level of credit risk. The
stronger the financial position that the borrower exhibits and/or
the better the market conditions, the lower the applicable lending
rate. Other factors such as the cost of funds, interest rate charged
by competitors, the repayment history and length of business
relationship will also be considered. Interest rates are determined
with reference to risk factors, tenure of loan, borrowing record and
interest rates offered by competitors.

Risk control

In order to safeguard the repayment of loans and minimise default
risks, all of the existing customers are either business contacts
or referrals from the executive Directors which have either good
standings or long-term business relationships with the Group. In
this way, the Group can limit its risk exposure.

Loan documentation

If a loan application has been approved, the financial controller
will then issue a standard loan agreement with the terms agreed by
both parties for the applicant to sign. The applicant should provide
his/her identity documentation and address proof to the financial
controller for him to prepare the loan agreement.

Loan disbursement

The financial controller will not disburse any funds to the customer
until Top Billion is in receipt of the drawdown notice attached
to the loan agreement signed by the customer. Funds are usually
disbursed by crossed or personal cheques deposited to the
customers’ designated bank accounts as per his/her drawdown
notice. Loan disbursement in cash is not allowed, which not only
minimises fraud or theft but also protects the Group from being
inadvertently involved in money laundering activities.

Post-loan monitoring

Interim and annual review(s) will be performed by Top Billion.
Updated background and financial information of the borrower
will be obtained and assessed by the Credit Committee. This helps
Top Billion to promptly discover potential problems that may be
detrimental to timely repayment and allows Top Billion to adjust
collection strategies.

Loan renewal

When considering whether to renew a loan, the Group will
take into consideration (i) the repayment or credit record of the
borrower; and (ii) the borrower’s up-to-date financial strength and
background. If the above factors are not satisfactory and/or the
Directors are of the view that the risks and benefits are not properly
balanced, such loan would not be renewed upon maturity.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Early repayment

Early repayment of the loan is possible if the customer provides not
less than one business day’s prior written notice. On the date upon
which such early repayment is to be made, the customer shall repay
the outstanding loan and all other monies outstanding (including
accrued interests) thereunder.

Repayment overdue monitoring

The accounts staff will check if each loan repayment is made on
schedule. If any repayment is overdue for more than two days, the
accounts staff will bring the issue to the attention of the financial
controller, and he will make verbal reminders to the relevant
customer. In the event repayment is overdue for more than seven
days after the verbal reminders, the financial controller will then
issue an overdue notice to the customer on record. If repayment
remains overdue for more than 14 days, the financial controller
may issue further reminders to the customer and/or consider other
actions.

Loan collection

The Group monitors the repayment of all loans based on each of
the respective repayment dates of each of the individual loans.
The Group reserves the right to require the customer to repay the
loan and other monies outstanding (including accrued interests)
on demand at any time during the term of the loan by giving the
customer not less than one business day’s prior written notice. On
the date upon which such repayment is to be made, the customer
shall pay to the Group the outstanding loan and all other monies
outstanding (including accrued interests) thereunder.

If the loan could not be collected within a reasonable time
thereafter, depending on the specific circumstances of the customer,
the Credit Committee will decide on instigating legal action(s)
to enforce the Group’s rights under the loan. Mediation may
also be considered to reach an agreement with the customer on
repayment. If the customer fails to perform their obligations under
the mediation agreement, the Credit Committee may decide on
applying to the court for mandatory enforcement.

In case where all potential means of recovery have been exhausted,
the Credit Committee will determine whether to write off the
problem loan as a bad loan. All loan write-offs must be approved
by the Board of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2023, the annual interest rate of loan ranged
from 5% to 7% (31 December 2022: 5% to 7%) and the term
ranged from 1 to 3 years (31 December 2022: 1 to 3 years). The
total gross loan receivable amounted to approximately HK$438.6
million (31 December 2022: HK$433.4 million). The Group's
five largest gross loan receivables amounted to approximately
HK$332.2 million or 75.7% (31 December 2022: HK$332.2
million or 76.6%) of the Group’s total gross loan receivables.
During the Year, the interest income from the money lending
business was approximately HK$27.4 million. The Group will
continue to maintain its prudent credit policy and risk management
approach with a view to achieve a sound financial management
and sustainable business environment.

During the Year, the Group assessed and estimated credit loss
allowances (“ECLs”) for the loan receivables according to the
requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”)
9 issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Group had recognized ECLs on loan receivables from the
money lending business amounting to approximately HK$0.1
million (31 December 2022: HK$13.2 million). The models and
assumptions adopted by the management in estimating ECLs are
related to the future macroeconomic conditions and borrowers’
creditworthiness (e.g. The likelihood of default by customers).
Such assessment has taken regard of quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward looking analysis.
Related disclosures on loan from the money lending business are
included in Notes 21 to the consolidated financial statement.

The Chinese medicine clinics business

In light of the pessimistic atmosphere in the global stock market and
the challenging environment in the Chinese offshore bond market,
the Group has diversified its investment in the Chinese medical
clinic sector in order to complement the existing businesses.

During the Year, the revenue generated from the Chinese medicine
clinics business sector was including consultancy fee income of
approximately HK$11.5 million and sales of goods of approximately
HK$0.6 million.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Prospects

Looking ahead, Hong Kong's economy will face slower growth as
challenges from China ‘s economic slowdown and the elevated
interest rate. Hong Kong inbound tourism and private consumption
will remain the major drivers of economic growth for the year
to come. The launching and extension of the individual visit
scheme will bring an immediate surge in the number of Mainland
visitors from mainland China. The external environment remains
challenging and weigh on export and consumer confidence.

Affected by high US dollar financing cost, downturn of the property
market and the weakening of repayment ability, Chinese offshore
bond market issuance is expected to decrease, especially in the
stressed property sector. The Group will continue to actively seek
opportunities to expand the business scope of the Group. With
the increase in awareness of environmental protection, the Group
considers that there are prospects in new energy vehicle and
artificial intelligent technology and intend to participate in these
fast growing business sectors.

Besides, we shall not overlook the downside risks due to the
expectation of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical
tension which continue to cloud the global economic recovery. In
light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will continue
to stay alert, but positive, to pursue its prudent investment strategy
in developing its existing and new businesses.

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$90.2 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$277.8 million last year. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$27.4 million, commission income from placing
of approximately HK$39.5 million, commission income from
securities and futures dealing of approximately HK$5.3 million,
interest income from securities margin financing of approximately
HK$9.2 million and management fee income from asset
management business of approximately HK$14.1 million.

The Group recorded other comprehensive loss of approximately
HK$221.7 million for the Year (31 December 2022: other
comprehensive income of HK$60.8 million). It was mainly
attributable to an decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$220.2 million on equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (31 December 2022: HK$65.6
million). As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$776.7 million (31 December 2022: HK$1,105.1
million).
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Major Customers

During the Year, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 6.26% and 23.25%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. As far as the Directors
are aware, none of Directors, their associates or any shareholders
who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any
interest in the five largest customers of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation
with internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund-raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2023 were approximately
HK$22.6 million (31 December 2022: HK$62.4 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had any bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$20.4 million (31 December 2022: HK$21.6
million), and interest-bearing other borrowings of approximately
HK$148.4 million (31 December 2022: HK$123.1 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 3.08 times (31 December 2022: 1.5 times) based on
current assets of approximately HK$810.4 million (31 December
2022: HK$1,416.3 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$262.8 million (31 December 2022: HK$945.2 million). No
capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2023 not
provided for in the Group’s financial statements (31 December
2022: HK$ Nil). The Group also had no other contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 21.7% (31 December 2022: 20.5%). Gearing ratio
equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the end
of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$168.8 million includes other borrowings and bank overdraft.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars. Most of the
Group’s revenue are made in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
Therefore, the exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are
insignificant.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Material acquisitions and disposals

(i)

(i)

On 4 November 2022, the Central Wealth infrastructure
Investment Limited (vendor), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the conditional sales and
purchase agreement with each of the purchasers respectively,
namely Lau Wei Suen, Jenny, Tan Qiyuan and Luo Zhenli
(purchasers). Pursuant to which, the vendor agreed to sell and
the purchasers agreed to acquire an aggregate of 65,356,000
ordinary shares of Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group
Limited for a total consideration of HK$169.3 million. The
Company intends to use as to approximately HK$89.1 million
of the net proceeds towards repayment of indebtedness of
the Group and as to the remaining balance of approximately
HK$79.9 million of the net proceeds towards general working
capital of the Group. The details of which were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 4 November 2022
and 15 February 2023 and circular of the Company dated 20
January 2023.

On 19 December 2022, the Company (purchaser) and JZ3I|
FRE (b ¥ 78 5B IR A B (Shenzhen Central Wealth Enterprises
Consultancy Co., Ltd*), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
F 25 (Li Minjun*) and &% (Luo Yanfang*) (vendors).
Pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to purchase 51% of
equity interests in #i /N 5 16 XL EH B R 2 & (Hangzhou
Yiyou Culture Media Co., Ltd.*) (targeted company) for a total
consideration of RMB145,600,000, which shall be settled by
cash and/or allotment and issue of the consideration shares.
The targeted company is a company established in the PRC
with limited liability and is principally engaged in internet
live broadcasting, KOL incubation and marketing and sales
business in the PRC. The targeted company has exclusive
e-commerce contract with Sister Sihuo “PY A GHE R,
a reputable artiste, celebrity and live broadcaster in the PRC.
The details of which were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 19 December 2022 and 20 December
2022. As the condition precedents to the agreement cannot
be fulfilled on or before the long stop date of the agreement,
the agreement has on 30 June 2023 expired and terminated in
accordance with its terms. No consideration was paid by the
Group under the agreement.
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(iii)  On 29 November 2023, Morley Way Limited (purchaser), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
sales and purchase agreement with Lee Ming Pui (the vendor).
Pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser
agreed to acquire 25% of the total issued capital of Senworth
Limited (target company) for a total consideration of HK$80
million, of which HK$30 million shall be settled by in cash
and the remaining balance of HK$50 million by issuing
promissory note. The target company holds 90% equity
interests in Tinshun property, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability. Tinshun property in turn holds 50%
equity interests in Guangda property, a company established
in the PRC with limited liability. Guangda property holds
the land use rights of the property. Immediately before this
transaction, the purchaser is interest in 49% of the issue
share capital of the targe company. Upon the completion, the
purchaser will hold in 74% interests in aggregate of the issued
share capital of the target company and the sales share will
be classified a subsidiary of the company and its results will
be consolidated in the Group in accordance with applicable
accounting standards. The details of which were disclosed
in the announcement of the company dated 29 and 30
November 2023, 29 January 2024 and 21 February 2024.

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged certain listed
equity investments of approximately HK$399.3 million and two
properties in PRC of approximately HK$17.7 million (31 December
2022: HK$392.1 million) to secure the other borrowings.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 56 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and equity
investments and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2022, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 252.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.
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Results

Revenue

LN

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax expense

BEEHA (B8) /8
FIERAX

(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BR) /&M
Assets and liabilities

Total assets EENE

Total liabilities aERE

Net assets BEFE

2023
—m==

—F_=

HK$'000
TER

90,160

(133,756)
(95)

(133,851)

2023
===

—S

HK$'000
TER

1,040,024
263,340

776,684
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019
“§--f C-%--% CZZ-BFf CZE-Nf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
(restated)
(RE5)
277,840 243,841 669,850 947,744
(103,318) (369,459) 35,385 248,519
(2,738) (1,807) (7,627) (40,132)
(106,056) (371,266) 27,758 208,387
BERAM
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019
“E--f ZB--% BB CZE-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
(restated)
(&E5)
2,053,900 1,828,312 2,552,480 2,427,162
948,826 705,903 1,275,206 1,211,815
1,105,074 1,122,409 1277274 1,215,347




Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2023, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,779,645,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was 23.25% of the Group's total revenue, of
which 6.26% was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group's total purchase during the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Mr. Li Jing

Ms. Chen Jingxian (resigned on 24 July 2023)
Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng (appointed on 8 March 2023)
Mr. Lin Guoyan (resigned on 8 March 2023)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms. Song
Caini, Mr. Chen Hongjin and Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire at
the 2024 annual general meeting (the “2024 AGM”) and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 73 to 75 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Li Jing, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms.
Song Caini and Mr. Chen Hongjin has a service contract with the
Company without any fixed term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming and Ms. Li Meifeng has
been appointed for a fixed term of one year.
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All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors” Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 40 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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Share Option Schemes

A share option scheme (the “2013 Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted and became effective on 27 September 2013. The
Company terminated the 2013 Share Option Scheme on 8 June
2023. No further share option has been or will be granted under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its termination, while the
share options granted prior to such termination shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme pursuant
to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on 8 June 2023 (the “2023
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants (including but not limited to
the directors and employees of the Group) who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations.

The number of options available for grant under the mandate of the
2013 share option scheme as at 1 January 2023 was 155,565,046.
There is no service provider sublimit under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme. The number of options available for grant under the
mandate of the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the service provider
sublimit of the 2023 Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2023
were 157,595,046 and 167,572,504 respectively.
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A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the RZARFER AN a2 ERET SIS BBMOT
Company during the year is set out as follows:

Weighted average
closing price of
Number of Number of the Company's shares
share options Nurber of share Number of share Number of share Nurmber of share share options Exercise price  immediately before
Narme or category outstanding at options granted ~~options exercised options cancelled options lapsed during outstanding at Date of grant of Exercise period of of share options the exercise dates
of participant 1 January 2023 during the Year® during the Year during the Year theYear® 31 December 2023 share options share options (HKS per share) (HKS per share)
H-8-=%
R-BoZE tZA=t-B RETRANAALE
-B-BHAfR REEERHN REEEFRH REEEHEN REFEXNH ESiE ¥4 BREGRE RONNETHLHE
SREREIRG ZHRARE ERERE® ERERA BREEE BRERAEY BRERE RUBBEES RREGRAEY (8R#ER) (8R#ER)
Director
B2
Chen Xiaodong 159,600,000 - - - (159,600,000} - 05052021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172 -
REX “3--F1ATA
ZR-ZERARA
159,600,000 - - - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 0.024 -
ZRICERACTR
- 167,570,000 - - - 167,570,000 131092023 0.027 -
“FZEARTER
319,200,000 167,570,000 - - (159,600,000) 327,170,000
Yu Qingrui 159,600,000 - - - (159,600,000} - 05052021 00172 -
REY —F--f1A1A
159,600,000 - - - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0.024 -
ZEIFRACTR ZECIFRACTRE
“ECRERATAR
- 167,570,000 - - - 167,570,000 13/09/2023 1310912023 - 12/09/2025 0027 -
“RoZEAATEA ’T’*ﬁhﬁ K
319,200,000 167,570,000 - - (159,600,000} 327,170,000
Wu Ming 15,890,000 - - - (15,890,000) - 05052021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 00172 -
R “2--%RARR “E--FRARAZ
15,890,000 - B - (15,890,000) -
Chen Jingxian 159,600,000 - - - (159,600,000} - 200612022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0.024 -
RERY ZRICERACTE CECCERACTEE
ZRoRERATAR
159,600,000 - - - (159,600,000) -
Song Caini 159,600,000 - - - - 159,600,000 20/6/2022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0.024 -
RRE ZRICERACTR ZECCERACTRE
ZECRERATAR
159,600,000 - - - - 159,600,000
Other employee
B ]
In aggregate 159,600,000 - (159,600,000) - - - 05052021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172 0.048
it “E--%RARA
478,800,000 - - - (478,800,000} - 200612022 20/06/2022 - 19/06/2024 0.024 =
ik Sk 79 FAAZTREE
“mERATAR
- 1,182,990,000 - - - 1,182,990,000  13/09/2023 1310912023 - 1210912025 0.027 =
ZICZEARTEIR ZECZEAATIAE
“RCIFARTCR
638,400,000 1,182,990,000 (159,600,000) - (478,800,000) 1,182,990,000
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Weighted average
closing price of
Number of Number of the Company's shares
share options Number of share Number of share Number of share Number of share share options Exercise price ~ immediately before
Name or category outstanding at options granted ~~ options exercised ~ options cancelled  options lapsed during outstanding at  Date of grant of Exercise period of of share options the exercise dates
of participant 1 January 2023 during the Year® during the Year during the Year the Year® 31 December 2023 share options share options"” (HKS per share) (HKS per share)
it Smit3
RZBz=Z% tZR=t-8 ERAEARARLE
-A-RHAGRE  RAERRDN  RAEEGRN  RAREEEN  MAERRNN HRTEZ BREGEE REGNETOUTER
SRAELAFH ZRRRHE BRERE BREHE BREYE BRERE" BRENE RUBRERS BREGEREY (SRER) (BEER)
Service providers
BRAES
In aggregate 623,000,000 (144,200,000) - (478,800,000) - 05052021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 00172 0.055
alt “E--%7A1A T_-FRARAZ
ZR-ZERARA
623,000,000 (144,200,000) - (478,800,000} -
Consultants
L
In aggregate 319,200,000 (159,600,000) - (159,600,000} - 05052021 05/05/2021 - 04/05/2023 0.0172 0.055
aft Z2--FRARA ERARAE
“EZFRARA
319,200,000 (159,600,000) - (159,600,000} -
Total 2,554,090,000 1,518,130,000 (463,400,000) - (1,611,890,000) 1,996,930,000
&t
Notes: M3t -
(1) The share options shall be vested on the day falling 12 months from (1) BEREEXNZLEHRI2ER((HEH])EE
the date of grant (the “Vesting Period”) until the commencement of HERE BE1TEHMR-
the exercise period.
(2)  The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant  (2) HREEZRLEREAR_ZT_=-FALA+=A
of share options on 13 September 2023 was HK$0.027. Al AR 7 UL T (B /80.0278 7T
(3)  The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options granted ~ (3) EHE-TE-_ZF+_-_F=+—BILLFE H#iEE
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December FE RS R ST B9 R AR A T = AT BB 31T 2 IR 19 BX
2023 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue for BEBRUAEE T _=F+=_A=+—HLFE
the year ended 31 December 2023 was 0.1. BTG 2 I FH8UR0.1 °
(4)  Ms. Chen Jingxian resigned as the vice chairman and an executive (4) BREHZITWR_T-_ZF+tA-+HWHETA
director of the Company on 24 July 2023. REEIERMRITES
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
EXgWmE

i%%zk@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&*ﬁgﬁﬂiﬁZ%

RZE-_=ZF+-A=+—H ARAEFNA
ARBEHRBERG (EEALEHFLBE KD
([BHERBEKHDEXVERHEFEETLR
RRARIRBEESFLRBEKOEISHEATUNETR
ZERMzED KRR EMEITAERH®TE
FRXGEZESTE| ([BESFA ) ENE ARQF
B Fr 2z R T

1 RELXFEBRZHR

Number of Percentage* of
ordinary shares the Company’s
Name of director Capacity interested issued share capital
REREN  EAAFDRSG
BExpns =80} EERHE BRAT D
Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 108,886,246 0.65%
BREER ESEAA
* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares * BOLERAEAN T BRMBKRARR

interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2023.

AR-Z-_=F+-A=+—HE#TK
HEE -
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

2 RAELXFEBEROz2HERE —BUEEHEL

TRAITETAR

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the
share options

Percentage* of
the underlying
shares over
the Company’s
issued share

Name of director Capacity granted capital
B RE B R
Fr% % AE R AT E BT

BEEnR g R EE BRAET DL *

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 327,170,000 1.95%

PREE R EREAA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 327,170,000 1.95%

RE & EmlEB A

Song Caini Beneficial owner 159,600,000 0.95%

RFKTe BEREAA

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors” Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 38 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2023 the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

Report of the Directors
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EERERODIES Z2ER

Lt [EERARA KD RAEERD 2 S

K [EBIRER & BT AR B HRERM 38R
BREFIRBEEMMEEELN RAFEAM
BEATMEFIAREZTAIERBIRRFTL
B AE B AR R R &5 M AN &
ZRER - T 18 e IR AR AT A (] 5 AR LS

AREHEAEFE R AW ET I EM R HE - B
FESANTMEMEABEEAZSERN-

FERRRAQIARMDRABBRKR D
Z R

N_E-_=F+-A=+—H BREAQARILE
HFREERAEIBEREFE 2 EMATH
FBEAQNFHE THSEFRARE 2 KD AE
BB P BEA5% sk A £ 2 RS

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company REAREBRZHR
Number of Percentage* of
Name of substantial ordinary shares the Company’s
shareholder Capacity Note interested issued share capital
BEERZZ EARRARE BT
TERREW 51 i =T EERHE N
Wu Weixin Beneficial owner 1,666,658,000 9.95%
tHEH EREAA
Lau Mingchung Beneficial owner 1,000,006,000 5.97%
28 BEREBA
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner (Note) 881,971,316 5.26%
Investment Limited
EERREERAF BERBERA (M)
Future World Holdings Limited Interests held by a controlled 881,971,316 5.26%

corporation (Note)

RFHFIERER DA BRZEHIDBRHAE 2R ()

Note: The issued share capital of Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment
Limited was wholly owned by Future World Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Future World Holdings Limited was deemed to be
interested in these shares of the Company which was deemed to be
interested by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment Limited pursuant
to part XV of the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2023.

Mz ©HEEBREFRAFNDHETHRAHRKY
SERERLABAEZEEA B REFEFR
HEHOIE XV 3B KRR FRIER AR A B
BRNEHEAREBRARRGEAE S
MZEARR RN DEEER-

* B ERA RN B E B ARR RN
TEC=F+-A=t+—HEZETROHHA -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been audited by Moore CPA Limited (formerly known as
Moore Stephens CPA Limited, “Moore”) who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Moore as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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Corporate Governance Re

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix 14) of the Listing
Rules. Key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Li Jing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jing

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Song Caini

Mr. Chen Hongjin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ming

Ms. Li Meifeng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Ms. Li Meifeng

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Ms. Li Meifeng

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

The Company has implementable and effective mechanism to
ensure independent views and inputs are available to the Board,
with the following key features: (i) the Nomination Committee
is established with clear terms of reference to identify suitable
candidates, including independent non-executive directors, for
appointment as Directors; (ii) the Nomination Committee will
assess annually the independence of all independent non-executive
directors; and (iii) the Directors are entitled to seek, at the Group’s
expense, independent professional advice reasonably necessary
for discharging their duties as Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the mechanism and considered it to be effective.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board and day-to-
day management of the business and hence to ensure balance of
power and authority, there is separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company.

Currently, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Chen Xiaodong and Mr. Li Jing respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board, whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development
and daily management and operations generally. The respective
responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer have been clearly established and set out in
writing. The separation of roles would ensure a balance of power
and authority, and strengthen the governance function and business
development of the Group.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Li Jing, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini and Mr. Chen
Hongjin have not been appointed for a specific term but they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. The Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each
of the independent non-executive directors of the Company for a
term of 1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms. Song
Caini, Mr. Chen Hongjin and Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong shall retire at
the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2024 AGM. The Board recommended the re-election
of the above retiring directors at the 2024 AGM.

Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to the directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
Mr. Li Jing, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini, Mr. Chen Hongjin,
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming, and Ms. Li Meifeng received
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary on corporate
governance and updates on the Listing Rules amendments. In
addition, the Company has provided reading materials on regulatory
updates to all the directors for their reference and studying.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Company’s directors and all have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
and the Own Code throughout the period from 1 January 2023 to
the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was noted by
the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set
out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/EERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual Special
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Name of Director EEpg Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE HMZEE REZEE  RREE  RRHH
Ezeed g3 g3 g3 - -
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (note 1) R (M) 6/6 - 2 2 11 11
Mr. Li Jing FERE 6/6 - - - 17 7
Ms. Chen Jingxian (note 2) Rt (f2) 33 - - - 171 i
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHRE 6/6 - - - 1 n
Ms. Song Caini RRERL 6/6 - - - 7 17
Mr. Chen Hongjin Rt 4 6/6 - - - 17 171
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong FERRLE 6/6 202 33 202 17 171
Mr. Wu Ming R#FHE 6/6 22 - - 171 171
Mr. Lin Guoyan (note 3) MBI S A (i 3E3) - - - - = 17
Ms. Li Meifeng (note 4) ZEB L (fit4) 505 2 2 17 Il -
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Xiaodong has been appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 8 March 2023. During the period
from his appointment up to 31 December 2023, 2 Remuneration
Committee Meetings were held.

2. Ms. Chen Jingxian resigned as the vice chairman and an executive
director of the Company on 24 July 2023. During the period from
1 January 2023 up to her resignation, 3 Board Meetings, 1 Annual
General Meeting, and 1 Special General Meeting were held.

3. Mr Lin Guoyan resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 8 March 2023. During the period from 1 January
2023 up to his resignation, 1 Special General Meeting and no Board
Meeting were held.

4. Ms. Li Meifeng was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 8 March 2023. During the period from
her appointment up to 31 December 2023, 5 Board Meetings, 2
Audit Committee Meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee Meetings, 1
Nomination Committee Meeting, and 1 Annual General Meeting were
held.

In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the five executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Li
Jing, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Song Caini and Mr. Chen Hongjin.
The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also acts as the
Chairman of this committee. The Executive Committee operates
as a general management committee under the direct authority of
the Board to increase the efficiency for business decision making.
It monitors the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses and
makes decisions on matters relating to the management and day-to-
day operations of the Group.
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Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Wu Ming and Ms.
Li Meifeng, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the Company’s financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended 31
December 2022 and for the six months ended 30 June 2023,
the financial reporting, the related accounting principles,
practices and compliance procedures of the Company;

- Discussed and recommended the re-appointment of external
auditors; and

- Reviewed the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three
members, namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Chen
Xiaodong and Ms. Li Meifeng, majority of whom are independent
non-executive directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate goals
and objectives; (iii) establish a formal and transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, the remuneration of which will
be determined with reference to the performance of the individual
and the Group as well as market practice and conditions; and (iv)
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee has performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Group;

- Discussed and recommended the grant of share options of the
Company; and

- Discussed and recommended the remuneration regarding
the appointment of Ms. Li Meifeng as an independent non-
executive director of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Ms. Li Meifeng, majority of whom are independent non-executive
directors.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy has been adopted
by the Company, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In
relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.
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As of the date of this annual report, 2 of 8 of the Company’s
Directors are female. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a
total of 29 female staff out of 56 employees, representing 51.79%
of the employees of the Group. The Group will continue to take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members
and workforce over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified. Further details on the gender ratio of the Group together
with relevant data can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company. The Board and the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the board diversity policy and considered it to be effective for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character
and integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee performed the following works:

- Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

—  Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2023 annual general
meeting of the Company;

—  Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company; and

- Considered and recommended the appointment of Ms. Li

Meifeng as an independent non-executive director of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

On 18 December 2023, the Securities and Futures Commission
(SFC) has reprimanded and fined Central Wealth Securities
Investment Limited (CWSI), a subsidiary of the Company and a
licensed corporation, for failures in complying with the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (FRR) in inadvertently
overstating its liquid capital between April 2019 and December
2020. The non-compliance of the FRR was inadvertently caused by
the failure to appoint qualified and competent persons to prepare
and review the financial returns.

After identifying the inadvertent errors in 2020, CWSI has
implemented rectification measures to strengthen the internal
control systems on financial reporting. No further abnormality is
identified after implementing the rectification measures. Ongoing
assessments will be conducted to ensure adequate and effective
internal control systems are in place.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the
Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls for the year ended 31
December 2023. The annual review also covered areas on financial
reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification, experiences
and relevant resources. The Board considered that such systems
are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same nature
would be conducted in subsequent years.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2023 the remuneration paid/payable to
the external auditors of the Company, Moore CPA Limited, is set
out below:
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(HK$)
& i
Nature of Services REME (%)
Audit services BT R 1,680,000
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TOTAL: et 1,977,000
Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance and st : BREZIBHRBEEIZEEAMZBEILE
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong,
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: Unit 1801-2, 18/F, Far East Finance Centre,
No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of
Investor Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders” meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders” interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders” meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the voting rights at general meetings
(on a one vote per share basis) in the share capital of the
Company may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Clause 58 of the Company’s
bye-laws by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

(2)  Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders” meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).
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(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
amended and restated its bye-laws on 8 June 2023. Details of the
amendments are set out in the Company’s circular dated 28 April
2023. An up-to-date version of the Company’s bye-laws is also
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’” meeting.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company has reviewed the Shareholders” Communication Policy
and considered that the policy was effectively implemented with the
measures as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Communications
with Shareholders and Investors” and “Shareholder Rights”.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Scope and Reporting Period

This is the seventh Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong,
Shenzhen, and Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (with
a total floor area of 3,367.30 m?), from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023, unless otherwise stated.

There were no major operational changes in the scope of this
report compared with that for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (the “Last Reporting Period”).

Reporting Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix C2 to
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “Guide”). The contents
covered herein are in compliance with the provision of “Comply
or Explain” as well as four reporting principles of materiality,
quantitativeness, balance and consistency required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out to
identify material environmental and social issues that have major
impacts on investors and other stakeholders, the significant
stakeholders, procedures, and results of the engagement of
which are presented in the section “Stakeholder Engagement and
Materiality” in the Report.

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“KPI”s) have been
established, and are measurable and applicable to make valid
comparisons under appropriate conditions; information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions, and/or calculation tools
used, and sources of conversion factors used, have been disclosed
when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding choices,
omissions or presentation formats that may unduly influence
readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and presentation
of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful comparisons of related
data over time.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Refort

The Group’s Future Development and
Commitments

With rising emphases on developing sustainably, there comes with
opportunities and risks associated with the environmental and
social discourse. In face of such uncertainty, the Group will actively
adjust its development plans according to the market trends. It
hopes to better manage ESG-related risks in relation to future
business development and operate with high ethical standards.
With a long-term goal of expanding its operations, the Group will
make use of opportunities and avoid risky investments to achieve
an effective while stable business growth.

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability
strategy and reporting. The sustainability plan of the Group is
developed based on results of ESG Reports and regular reports from
senior management of its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an
annual basis and adjusted as needed to align with the long-term
business strategy of the Group. Additionally, the Board evaluates
the Group’s progress in achieving the reduction targets against
the baseline year annually, and adjusts said targets based on the
situation.

The Chairman’s Statement

The year 2023 is marked by the impact of global geopolitical
conflicts — the continuing war between Russia and Ukraine, the
escalating tension between US and its allies and China, and the
mounting threat of war in the Middle East. While the effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic have gradually subsided in 2023, we
nevertheless need to maintain vigilance. Furthermore, monetary
policy tightening in the US has led to high interest environment,
impacting business around the world. All these events reaffirm
that sustainability is the key to tide over difficult macroeconomic,
geopolitical and health situations.

At the same time, stakeholders are increasingly nudging
corporations to take sustainability factors into consideration when
doing businesses. As a corporate citizen, the Group recognises this
and continues to make sustainability its operational focus. To better
understand the demands and expectations of our stakeholders, we
invite employees, service providers, and clients to participate in a
survey to maintain effective communication, allowing us to better
accommodate their needs.

We are dedicated to improving our sustainability performance in
our operations, and we understand that sustainability governance
is the foundation to a successful operation. The Board is, therefore,
responsible in setting our strategic direction, ensuring that our ESG
strategy reflects the Group’s values and core businesses. In the
future, the Board will review the progress made against ESG-related
goals to guide the Group in monitoring its ESG performance.
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Through embedding sustainability in our business concept, we
create greater value for both our stakeholders and society. We
believe we have a responsibility to the environment, society, and
our employees, these include minimising the Group’s pollution
emissions, promoting equal rights, and offering more opportunities
for all employees. Without the contribution of our employees,
customers, business partners and communities, it would not have
been possible for us to have achieved so much.

Looking ahead, to tackle future challenges, we will continue
to drive our sustainability performance and further incorporate
sustainability into our core strategy through setting up relevant
guidelines and policies for better management and control of
ESG issues. We strive to maintain our market position in asset
management and securities brokerage, and also to manage
upcoming business challenges. In line with upholding the business
sustainability of the Group, we will continue to maintain high
ethical standards, and formulate environmental, economic, and
social strategies to achieve stable and sustainable returns to our
stakeholders.

This report sets out our sustainability practices and approaches
throughout the past year. We hope this report will provide our
stakeholders an overview of our sustainability performance.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meetings. When issues have been identified,
they are discussed as an issue of the corporate culture. The Group
also emphasises on the importance of paying attention to issues and
giving appropriate response to the arising problems. Solutions to
relevant topics are regularly explored on such that relevant issues
can be addressed and resolved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has specifically engaged MBMEHA AEBEEMFIHEESHE SR
board members, senior management, and frontline employees to EIZELAGEEHTER UEENKEERA
gain further insights on ESG aspects they find material and relevant EZ/RF HEREGTHENE - P REUR
challenges that they may induce. A materiality assessment has then 25 7 E A 88 & 5| R BREBkE - WREBBRIE
been produced according to the engagement as follows. MIBA TR E R MR -

Materiality of Different Topics from Stakeholder Engagement
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Environmental Operational
R meg
Al Energy C1 Supply Chain Management
BEIR HrEgE R
A2 Water C2 Intellectual Property
KER RN 38 EE
A3 Air Emission C3 Data Protection
REEHE BERHRE
A4 Waste and Effluent C4  Customer Service
57K EE) PR
A5 Other Raw Materials Consumption C5 Product/Service Quality
H AR EOERE Em/ REEE
Ab Environmental Protection Measures Cé6 Anti-corruption
RIRTEE k&S
A7  Climate Change C7  Community Investment
AR HERRE
Labour Other
BT Hft
B1 Employment D1 Risk Management
(=5 [\ B i 3R
B2 Occupational Health and Safety D2  Protection of Client’s rights
BEERELE REZTFHER
B3 Development and Training D3 Prevention of Malpractice
TR R 8 7 8 B
B4 Labour Standards

8 T 2R

According to the assessment, the five most material topics to the R AUEAEBGEEN A EERNERE

Group are therefore, y=!

1. Data Protection 1. BERRE

2. Protection of Client’s Rights 2. RERPEN
3. Prevention of Malpractice 3. TEmIER

4. Product/Service Quality 4. En/MRBEER
5. Anti-corruption 5. RES
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The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for the identified aspects and continue to improve its ESG
performance. The Group also hopes to have better management
on ESG-related risks for future business development. In alignment
with the Group’s vision on sustainability, the business will continue
to operate with high ethical standards and provide sustainable
returns to stakeholders.

Stakeholders” Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with the Group via
email at info@cwghl.com.

A. Environmental
A1. Emissions

Due to the nature of the business, the Group’s operations
are office based and their related environmental impact
was very minimal. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has strictly followed all environmental-related
rules and guidance from local and national authorities.
In addition, the Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharge into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste as
required by the applicable laws and regulations during
the Reporting Period. These include, but not limited to,
the Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance and
the Waste Disposal Ordinance.

AT.1 Air Emissions
During the Reporting Period, there was 1 group-
owned passenger car, which contributed to the
emissions of sulphur oxides (“SOx”), nitrogen
oxides (“NOx”), and particulate matters (“PM”)
emission.

See below for the breakdown of 2023 air
emissions, as well as comparisons with Last
Reporting Period.
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2023 Emission 2022 Emission

(in kg) (in kg)

—E-=HF —E-—F

Type of Air Emission EERBEER BErhE (F) PEERE (F3=)
SOx ey 0.06 0.06
Nox RAELw 21.48 43.59
PM AR 2.00 2.02

The intensity of air emissions by the Group was
0.02 g of SOx, 6.38 g of Nox, and 0.59 g of PM
per m? of total floor area of the Group’s business
operations.
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Al1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

During the Reporting Period, 71.59 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO.,e”) greenhouse
gases (“GHG”, mainly carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the Group’s
operations. This is a 1.12% increase from Last
Reporting Period, with no significant changes to
emission amount from any emission sources.'

The intensity of GHG emissions by the Group was
0.02 tCO,e per m? of total office area.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s GHG
emissions were contributed by:

- Scope 1 — Direct Emissions from operations
that are owned by or controlled by the
Group;

- Scope 2 - “Energy indirect” emissions
resulting from the generation of purchased
or acquired electricity, heating, cooling and
steam consumed within the Group; and

- Scope 3 - All other indirect emissions that
occur outside the Group, including both
upstream and downstream emissions.

A restatement has been issued to 2022 Scope 2 Energy Indirect
Emissions and Total GHG Emissions, as to reflect actual emissions for
emissions resulting from purchased electricity in Hong Kong offices
from HKE rather than CLP. The mentioned figures have been revised
as such:

2022 Emissions from Purchased Electricity — Previous Figure (31.20
tCO,e), Revised Figure (50.23 tCO,e);

2022 Total Emissions — Previous Figure (51.77 tCO,e), Revised Figure
(70.80 tCO,e).
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1

Al.2 BEREBHEN
RS E A ANE B Z B W
7159 — S biRE 88 =R 2
([BERE] ETZE &K
FEkaltER) B E—HE
HA 12 H01.12% » 1 7] BE BUR A9 BE
WEHTEKRE

ARENREREHRREER
40 2 5 1§ F 75 K0.028
B E-

RBERR NEBERERE
WUR A

- @BEN-AEEHEALE
HHEEEHEENEE
B

- #HER2-AEERIHMAE
B ERE SN HiE 'L
KEAMEERN [8ERHE
BB R

- BE3-AEEIHEL
WA EMEZEER &
s R R BE

BMEY - —FHERERARERIAE
REHMASELREL URMEEREELE
BENMIFTERBEENMEENERERE -
BT EsmT

TECFIHBENHRE-EAET (31.20
WE— LR EE) BRI (50.23M — A1t

W =
fixeE =

T _FEFHE-ENET G177 R
iR 8) BT RETF (70.80M — A LR E
2)-



Environmental, Social and Governance Refort
RIE g hERWmE

See below for the detail breakdown of 2023 GHG
contributions, as well as comparisons with Last

Reporting Period.

Scope of GHG

Emission Sources

TR =FRERBIRRN
MoBREF-—RERALRER

T&-

2023 Emission
(in tCO,e)

2022 Emission
(in tCO,e)

—E-= —ZE=-=
HnE R E
BERBHFHEE BEBR (BM_FRER) (M_StREE
Scope 1
gE
Direct Emissions Combustion of petrol in
group-owned vehicles Not! 11.21 10.64
=R371 37 S BB RERTRREN
Scope 2
gE2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased electricity Note2 Note3 50.94 50.23
B IR R BERL BEE Hhmmmn
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions Paper waste disposal Nt! 3.66 4.15
H A HEHER BEHEEN
Electricity used for processing
resh water and sewage by
third party handler Nete4 0.05 0.04
FE=T7BRIE R R IER KN
557Kk Bt B s
Business air travels Noe? 5.73 5.74
7 R A 22 e s
Total 71.59 70.80
at
Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to MizE1 - BR S B HEAN BEREF

Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules and their
referred documentation as set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated

otherwise.

Note 2: According to The Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of People’s Republic of China
(2022): Emission factor of 0.5703 tCO,e/MWh
was used for purchased electricity from the
National Grid of the PRC in 2023; Emission
factor of 0.5810 tCO,e/MWh was used for
purchased electricity from the National Grid of

the PRC in 2022.
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Al.3.

Note 3: According to HK Electric Investments
Sustainability Report 2022 and HK Electric
Investments Sustainability Report 2021:
Emission factor of 0.68 tCO,e/MWh was used
for purchased electricity from HKE in Hong
Kong in 2023, whereas emission factor of 0.71
tCO,e/MWh was used for purchased electricity
from HKE in Hong Kong in 2022.

Note 4: According to Water Supplies Department
Annual Report 2021/22 and 2020/21, and
Drainage Services Department Sustainability
Report 2020-21 and 2019-20: Emission factor
of 0.435 kgCO,e/m* was used for processed
fresh water in 2023, whereas emissions factor
of 0.21915 kgCO2e/m’ was used for processed
sewage in 2023; Emission factor of 0.428
kgCO,e/m* was used for processed fresh water
in 2022, whereas emissions factor of 0.21
kgCO,e/m* was used for processed sewage in
2022.

Note 5: CO, emissions from the Group’s business air
travels were reported in accordance with the
International Civil Aviation Organisation (ICAO)
Carbon Emission Calculator.

Hazardous Waste

During the Reporting Period, 10.00 kg of hardware
waste from printers and electronic equipment
were generated from daily office operation, which
represents a 33.33% decrease from last year.

The intensity was 2.97 g of hazardous waste per
m? of total office area.

ATl.4. Non-hazardous Waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
operations generated approximately 2.30 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste, which mainly included
food waste and packaging, newspaper, and
office wastepaper. Compared to last year, there
is a 39.47% decrease in non-hazardous waste
generation.
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See below for the detail breakdown of 2023
non-hazardous waste generation, as well as
comparisons with Last Reporting Period.

IR B REARE

TR CCFEAZEEEREY
BRE—wEMZLLRA A
BRTR-

2023 Amount 2022 Amount

(in kg) (in kg)
—E-= —E-=
Type of Non-Hazardous Waste =~ EEEZEYEF| BE(T=) BE(Fx)
Domestic/Office Waste EE /R ARERY) 2,300.00 3,800.00
Other Types of Wastepaper Hib R pIER (BFEERE
(Including newspaper, MARERSE)
office wastepaper, etc.) 3.10 5.15
Total st 2,303.10 3,805.15

The intensity was 0.68 kg of non-hazardous waste
per m? of total office area.

Al.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant
emissions. The main source of emission was paper
waste from daily office operations, and details of
paper-saving measures will be presented in section
A1.6. In terms of vehicles, the Group prioritises
electric cars when it has to rent one, followed by
fuel efficient ones.

The Group had set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in emissions intensity by 2031, using
2021 as the baseline year. The Group’s emission
intensity in 2021 was 0.67 tCO,e per m* of total
office area, which means the Group has achieved
a 94.26% reduction in emissions intensity from
the baseline year for this Reporting Period.

Based on these results, as well as considering
similar findings from Last Reporting Period, the
Group believes that its 10-year target for emissions
intensity reduction should be redefined to
properly evaluate the effectiveness of its emissions
mitigation measures. Going forward, the Group
shall set the target of achieving a 10% reduction
in emissions intensity by 2033, using 2023 as the
baseline year.
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Al.6. Waste Reduction and Initiatives Al.6. BEYE D R 5 1

The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operations. They were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps were collected by the Management
Office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group is collected
and handled by the Management Office. Paper is
used for daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. Paper saving
initiatives are encouraged among employees, such
as adopting double-sided printing and printing
with single-sided used paper. The Group tries to
recycle paper used whenever possible in attempt
to reduce waste disposed of at landfills.

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralised stationary supply
to utilise stationaries and avoid wastage. It
returns used cartridges to suppliers and purchases
remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-
functional devices. Reusable dishes and tableware
instead of disposable ones are used in office.
Other wastes including unneeded computers
and furniture are donated to Caritas Hong Kong
whenever possible.

The Group had set the target of achieving a
10% reduction in hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste intensity by 2031, using 2021 as
the baseline year. The Group’s hazardous waste
intensity in 2021 was 9.73 g of hazardous waste
per m? of total office area, which means the Group
has achieved a 69.48% reduction in hazardous
waste intensity from the baseline year for this
Reporting Period. Whereas the Group’s non-
hazardous waste intensity in 2021 was 2.44 kg of
non-hazardous waste per m? of total office area,
which means the Group has achieved a 71.97%
reduction in non-hazardous waste intensity from
the baseline year for this Reporting Period.

Based on these results, as well as considering
similar findings from Last Reporting Period,
the Group believes that its 10-year target for
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
intensity reduction should be redefined to properly
evaluate the effectiveness of its waste reduction
initiatives. Going forward, the Group shall set the
target of achieving a 10% reduction in hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste intensity by 2033,
using 2023 as the baseline year.
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A2. Use of Resources A2.

The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources. Nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

AZ2.1. Energy Consumption

A total of 115,308.99 kWh of energy was
consumed by the Group for its operations during
the Reporting Period, which represents a 6.09%
increase from last year. Electricity was the major
source of energy for the Group, which was used
to power its offices’ lighting, office equipment,
and other miscellaneous items necessary for
maintaining the offices’ daily operations. The rest
of the Group’s energy source was petrol used for
fuelling its passenger car.

See below for the detail breakdown of 2023

energy consumption, as well as comparisons with
Last Reporting Period.

2023 Direct 2023 Consumption

f&iﬁ ﬁ:& \\A#&m
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A2.1. BEJE EFE

RIREBA - AEEEBELERE

BEJR115,308.99F LB & &£ F

#N6.09% BN EAEBEME

B REBE BRANAER
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2022 Direct 2022 Consumption

Type of Energy Source Consumption (in kWh) Consumption (in kWh)
—EC-= —EC-= —E-C —E=-C

gEREA EEH# HEE (TERE) BEEHE HFE (T RE)
Electricity 78,088.00 kWh 78,088.00 73,245.00 kWh 73,245.00
B T ELB TRE

Petrol 4,200 litres 37,220.99 5,100 litres 35,448.56
R 7t 7

Total 115,308.99 108,693.56
s

Note: Conversion factors were referred to IEA Energy
Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

Overall, the Group’s energy use intensity was
34.24 kWh per m? of total office area.

Mizr: BMERHEH2R (BB
ﬁ%ﬁu/ﬁ REFFM) K=
ZTTRFIPCCHFIRESR
RBEER) mEL -

lvu Hxﬁlﬁ Z’K;EK@HZ;/JE)EHZEE

BERNEmES T 5 K34.24
TR B o
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A2.2.

A2.3.

Water Consumption

The Shanghai office consumed 81.27 m* of water
during the Reporting Period, which represents a
22.27% increase from Last Reporting Period. The
water intensity for Shanghai office was 0.031 m*/
m? of office area. As water usage of the Hong
Kong office was managed by the office building,
water consumption data for the Hong Kong office
was not available for the Reporting Period.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

To reduce electricity consumption, employees
are reminded to turn off office lights, computers,
printers, and air conditioners when leaving office.
Energy efficient office equipment are also used
when possible, and older electronic equipment
are to be gradually replaced by more efficient
ones. Air conditioners are defaulted to follow
temperatures as required by relevant regulations
by authorities to reduce energy use.

The Group had set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in energy use intensity by 2031, using
2021 as the baseline year. The Group’s energy use
intensity in 2021 was 82.23 kWh per m* of total
office area, which means the Group has achieved
a 58.36% reduction in energy use intensity from
the baseline year for this Reporting Period.

Based on these results, as well as considering
similar findings from Last Reporting Period, the
Group believes that its 10-year target for energy
use intensity reduction should be redefined to
properly evaluate the effectiveness of its energy
use efficiency initiatives. Going forward, the
Group shall set the target of achieving a 10%
reduction in energy use intensity by 2033, using
2023 as the baseline year.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ£BIZREMRA A
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A2.4.

A2.5.

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

Water was supplied and managed by the building
management of all offices and there was no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. The Group
had set a target of achieving a 5% reduction in
water consumption at its Shanghai office by 2031,
using 2021 as the baseline year. To achieve the
target, flow controllers had been installed in the
office buildings’ restrooms. The office has also
been promoting water conservation more actively
to achieve further results.

The Group’s Shanghai office had consumed
107.21 m* of water in 2021, which means the
Group had consumed 24.20% less water at its
Shanghai office during the Reporting Period when
compared to the baseline year. While this is a
significant decrease from the baseline year, this
is also a significant increase from Last Reporting
Period. As such, the Group shall wait for water
consumption figures from the Next Reporting
Period before considering whether to re-evaluate
its 10-year target for water use reduction.

Packaging Materials

The Group’s operations did not involve any regular
use of packaging materials. When there is such
usage as deemed necessary, cardboard boxes
made by recycled materials are used.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact on the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the

Environment

Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
and printing practices as another source of
emission and waste, the Group frequently reminds
employees to practise energy and resources-saving
habits in offices.

A3.

IR B REARE

A2.4. Kz 51 2

A2.5.

FMBERAZERKAERAEEERER
HEREE TFAEIEA
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A4. Climate Change

Due to the nature of business as an office-based
company, climate change has not posed significant
impact on the Group’s business operation. As such, the
Group has not formulated any policy regarding climate
change. However, the Group has identified relevant
climate-related risks and assessed their potential
financial impacts. The climate risks identified, their
time horizon, trend, and the potential financial impacts
affecting the Group are shown below.

Climate Risks  Time horizon  Trend

RIzER BEEE 8%

A4, RIR%E1L

EREKEEFEARA NEBANRAE
AR fIREB( W REANEBZE
BEEENEAFTE AW XEE
mAFIETAABRIEELHBER-
AT ANEEE # AR E MR E R
FEEBEEM ST E - HAREBEIER
FEMNDHBRERE  ARMER -
BEUARBEVEZEN TR

Potential financial impact

BEMBTE

Physical Risks ~ Acute Short term Increase
EERR =it ki il
Chronic Long term Increase
(543 & B
Transition Risks ~ Technology Long term Increase
BERR Bif &H =il
Policy and Short to medium Increase
Legal term
BRRAE  FREE Zm
Market Short term Increase
i pbi B
Reputation Short to medium Increase
term
BE PR il
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Extreme weather events with increased severity during cyclones,
hurricanes, storm surges and floods can cause supply chain
interruption by bringing damage to local infrastructure,
potential damage to offices and disruption to human resources.

ERIE RE-BRHRAKEE SRAREHFOEERED
BN TR ERRERERRE HRATENEERHE
BRELANER M S SR E e a

Longer-term shifts in climate patterns can increase capital costs,
operating costs, costs of human resources and increased
insurance premium.

RREANRARCERMERRA  BERAS ANERAK
RRBER -

During the transitional period, the Group expects increased
procurement expenditures to introduce new and alternative
technologies, and the additional cost of adopting/deploying
new practices and processes.

BIRHAR - AR B TR INEREE B S DA S B R R B B
IR HEHF BRI FRRA

Implementation of tightened environmental laws, stringent
requirements on climate disclosures and carbon pricing system
increases operating costs.

EnBERANRRE BREXHRENEEREMRTER
N

During the transitional period, the Group might face a decrease
in revenue due to higher environmental requirements of clients,
if no strategy has been set accordingly.

BEHR MR EPHRENERER HAKERAHENE
MREE - RE B LR A T o

Stakeholders’ concerns on climate-related issues of the Group
might dampen the investment sentiment of investors, impacting
the stock price and market capitalisation of the Group, and
hence increasing the liquidity risk.

MaRBEYAREREERRENEETRENIREED
RERS YEASENRBRDE EMEMRDERR -
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A4.1. Significant Climate-Related Issues

The Group recognises that extreme weather events
caused by climate change may negatively impact
daily operations and has accordingly prepared
contingency plans for these situations. These
include, but not limited to, work-from-home plans
for employees and insurance against damages
from extreme weather events. However, the Group
has yet to identify any opportunities arising from
climate change.

A4.2. Metric and Targets

To measure the level and impact of the Group’s
climate-related risks, the Group monitors
metrics and indicators to ensure an effective and
quantitative assessment. The Group monitors
and reviews its Scope 1, Scope 2, Scope 3 GHG
emissions (in tCO,eq.), total GHG emissions (in
tCO,eq.) and GHG emission intensity (in tCO,eq./
m? of total office area) regularly. The GHG
emission data and information about target setting
are shown in the section “A1. Emissions” of this
Report.

The Group has also included carbon footprint
reduction as one of its long-term goals.
Furthermore, in pursuit of social responsibility,
and to align with the national target of carbon
neutrality by 2060, the Group pledges to become
carbon neutral in its operations as of this Reporting
Period.

IR B REARE

A4.1. EXTIRIGEE

A4.2.

AEEREE  RIRZ(CEHN
BmAREFAELATES
EEEmMPE WHRMHEREE
HZFBANEZE -EHE
FETRRETIERMPAGE
Kot oy KSR 1 S K B 1B R AR
o PR+ AN SR 1B 1) R B BRAE AR
HRIERECHEROEE -

HEIZER HIZ
AEEASEREABERRED
ERRTE KEBEREHSIZ
ERIEZ  LAERB B EE M T
HeoAEBETHEZE BN E
HE -FE2 SHEIEERE
R (A — |t e E:t)
BERESNEE (UE_S1
MEE2H) MEEREHNTE
(A —EtMEEBPAE
HiEsT) - EHEERTHAE
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2N WIS SRR N (B
RHERZ Wi BETH
SEME YHEERD —TREEF
BERKPME BRRT %A
SEAZEAREHERHELZ
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B. Social B. &g
1. Employment and Labour Practices 1. BRREIER
BI. Employment Bl. Ef#
B1.1 Employment Figures B1.1 EREIE
The Group continues to invest in capacity REBTEHRE R AT
building among local human resource, BRMEBENER KPR
adopting best practices, and following local EHE T —EEBEE
and national laws. These include, but not HEBERERZ HRBE
limited to: BERRR:
Mainland China Hong Kong
FE A it B
J Labour Law o Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)
B8k ERIED (F£578)
. Labour Contract Law . Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112)
LBERIE BRIBED (F112F)
. Regulations on Paid Annual Leave for o Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480)
Employees MR AR 5] (55480%F )
BT H F KRR IR e Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
J Law on the Protection of Women'’s Rights Ordinance (Cap. 485)
and Interests s MR TE R F BN (5485%)
i 2 M 2 IR PR DR e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.
J Special Rules on the Labour Protection of 486)
Female Employees BAER (L) &Pl (£486% )
B T ERERFRIRE e Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 487)
BRI AR 5] (£487F)
o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 527)

KERM ARG (8B527F)

. Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
602)
18 R I AR 1651 (E602EF)

o Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608)
KT E KB ($£608%F)

The Group did not note any cases of material RBERAN  AEEL &
non-compliance in relation to employment BREMABRERZERXN
during the Reporting Period. RERIBR -
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As of 31 December 2023, the Group had
a total of 56 employees in its Hong Kong,
Shenzhen, and Shanghai offices. See below
for the detail breakdown of the workforce,

HEeE-_ZT-_=%+=-A4
=t+—HB AKERESR
EoRIE EBHREARE
HBES6ZEE %8 N A

as well as comparisons with Last Reporting AFEIEIA R B | — &
Period. B LA

Total Workforce as of BEt+t-A=+—8HK 2023 2022
31 December BEHEH —E=-= —E--
By Employment Type RERRLE S

Full-time 28 56 121
Part-time Fe R 0 9
By Gender gk =E By

Male FiE 27 74
Female it 29 56
By Employee Category RESERE D

Senior Management SRERE 15 18
Middle Management FRERRE 6 13
Frontline and Other Employees Al 4% 2 E fth (& 8 35 99
By Age Group RERARE D

18-25 18E255% 0 16
26-35 26Z%E355% 19 67
36-45 36E455% 25 35
46-55 46555 8 9
56 or above 56583 A _E 4 3
By Geographical Location RBNEE S

Mainland China B A i 29 98
Hong Kong E5 27 32
Total e 56 130
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B1.2 Turnover Figures

64

A total of 68 employees left the Group
during the Reporting Period, which
corresponds to a turnover rate of 121.43%.
Due to high interest environment, the
Group experienced a significant decrease in
revenue during the Reporting Period and had
to decrease its headcount accordingly. The
Group regularly reviews salary remuneration
and benefits to retain talents and stay
attractive and competitive in the market.

See below for the detail breakdown of
turnovers by gender, age group, and
geographical region during the Reporting

B1.2

B B BUE
RBEBHRN - AEEHLS
68% & B B B - BB X
121.43% - AR & Fl E R
BHEE AEERRE
H NI A KRR R
BRMEERLCE T A
REBEHEHNIES M
MER - meBa e
AL REMBHEFRS T
MERES -

K& AL MER - Fik
MRl Ko 1B F B oy B0 B
BRI B AR E F— ]

Period, as well as comparisons with Last THOLEBAT -
Reporting Period.
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

Turnovers as of BEZ+=H Number Turnover Rate Number Turnover Rate
31 December =+—H®W

BB S AE BRI = AH BEm®
By Gender ZERE D
Male B 35 129.63% 12.16%
Female el 33 113.79% 8.93%
By Age Group RERAR

£
18-25 18E255% 10 N/AZNiE A 6 37.50%
26-35 26%E355% 35 184.21% 5 7.46%
36-45 36E2455% 23 92.00% 3 8.57%
46-55 46E555% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
56 or above 565% 3k A | 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
By Geographical RENE
Location En

Mainland China sl=Np i) 6 22.22% 11 11.22%
Hong Kong o 62 213.79% 3 9.38%
Total et 68 121.43% 14 10.77%
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Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable
employment and labour related laws of
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employees
are provided with attractive salary with
year-end double pay. Salary is reviewed
on a periodic basis with considerations
given to employees’ performance during
the year, market rate of the industry, profit
result, and the projected earning ability of
the Group. Individual salary adjustment in
respect of promotion, confirmation, transfer,
re-classification etc. are recommended by
the Department Head in consultation with
the Administration Department. For certain
job positions, the Group pays commission
and incentives in line with trade practices
and management policies. Various types
of leave, including annual leaves, sick
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves
and jury services leave, are also provided.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) scheme, employees are entitled to
medical benefits scheme and employees’
compensation insurance. The standard
working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5
days per week.

There were no major changes in policies
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity
and anti-discrimination during the Reporting
Period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based
on their performance, qualification, integrity
and ability. Promotion will be offered with
considerations of the Group’s operation,
competence, potential and interpersonal
skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department
Manager. The Group reserves the right to
transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar
nature if necessary.

B1.3

B1.4

EBRF Nz HmERET
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EiERSERE B
FR-BAEBR ER FER
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g BREHBEDEE
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B1.5

B1.6

Employees who completed the probation
period and wish to resign must notify
in writing to the Department Manager
with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions
are stipulated in the appointment letters. For
employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination with or
without prejudice, they shall be provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s
salary in lieu of notice if their employment is
to be terminated.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities based on gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability,
pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group regularly organises gatherings,
such as annual dinners, sports matches, and
Christmas parties for its employees. As the
COVID-19 pandemic has largely subsided
during the Reporting Period, the Group has
resumed activities to help create a bond and
team spirit outside of workplace and raise
their sense of belonging.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ£BIZREMRA A
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Employee Health and Safety

The Group has complied with relevant
occupational health related laws and regulations.
These include, but not limited to:

Mainland China

IR B REARE

B2. ERRFHEZE
AEEDETARBERZER
@ REAERDEDI AR - B
BARRR

Hong Kong
&8

FE A it
° Labour Law
BEh )k
. Labour Contract Law
BEa RDE

. PRC Law on The Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

hE AR AMBBERY AE

As employees spend most of the time on working
with the computers, the Group has installed eye
protectors on monitors to reduce the chance of
eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Employees are also reminded to maintain
good posture and appropriate viewing distance
between eyes and computer screens, and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. The Group
also arranges professionals to sterilise the working
environment, and place greenings in the office.
By these, the Group hopes that employees’ health
can be safeguarded in workplace. With regards
to precautious measures against fire hazards,
the Group has arranged fire drills for employees
to familiarise them with the office buildings’
escape routes and location of fire extinguishing
equipment.

There were no major changes in management
practice in relation to occupational health and
safety during the Reporting Period.

Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap.
282)

REmMERD (F28258)

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Cap. 509)

BXRZ 2 REEGRD ($509%)

HREEEARKREEREKT
B AEBEREBRE LERD
&G LAR A AT BE R B B R S
HHREBERE -HMATRERES
RIFRIFL L RIFRBAEN
FREMEEBEER &R
KREREETHRREE ~AEE
MEBREEATH TIERRE
THS LERAEZTARER
E-BBLtilSE ~A8EFE
BEREIIESANEERSIR
B-=RNHAEE AREER
BELHHEEE  BREAT
BFEMRERRUASEDR
RN ESR

RBEMABEBERERE
ENEERRYBEAES-
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B2.1 Work-related fatalities and injury
Occupational Health and Safety Data

B2.1 BETEERNBTHIE
CEROCFNRERE

in 2023 RzEHIE
Work related fatality I EREIET AR 0
Fatality Rate FLT K 0.00%
Work injury cases >3 days THBEZR(ZR3K) 0
Work injury cases <3 days THEZR (DR

FN3IX) 0
Lost days due to work injury HIBREAIIERE 0
Occupational Health and Safety Data CECCENRERER
in 2022 RZ2HE
Work related fatality AIERERIET AR 0
Fatality Rate BT X 0.00%
Occupational Health and Safety Data TEC-FREREER
in 2021 RZ2HE
Work related fatality AIEREIET AR 0
Fatality Rate BT X 0.00%

During the Reporting Period, the Company
did not receive any complaints or lawsuits
regarding violations of health and safety-
related laws, and there was no work-related
death in the past three years.

Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees” job
performance in order to identify training needs.
Employees are encouraged to participate in work-
related and personal development trainings
through on-the-job trainings and external trainings
to understand market trends and increase their
competence.

During the Reporting Period, inclusive of
employees who have left the Group, 86
employees, or 153.57% of all employees, received
training as arranged by the Group, and the average
training hours that each employee received
(inclusive of those who did not receive training)
was 15.36 hours. Due to the high turnover rate
during the Reporting Period, reported training
figures have been skewed. Training provided was
mostly duty-related courses or seminars delivered
by external service providers. The trainings
covered topics such as accounting standards, laws
and regulations, and anti-corruption.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ£BIZREMRA A
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The percentage and average training hours
per gender and employee category during the
Reporting Period are as follows:

RE e NEamsE

Fi&iﬁﬁﬁﬂ AR R K B B KRR

&0z A7 R B

LN

Percentage  Average Training
of Trained Hours per

Employees Employee
ZIEE BHEEN

B 59 55 31 B B

By Gender BRI B & 5
Male EEgid

Female i

By Employee Category RESEHE S
Senior Management SRERE
Middle Management RARERE
Frontline and Other Employees A& R E b & 8

Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and Labour Law
of the PRC, there was no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation during the Reporting
Period. All resumes, original identification cards
and relevant certificates of job candidates are
first checked by the Group during interviews.
Candidates’ preceded employers may be
contacted for provision of references. If any case
of non-compliance is discovered, the Group will
immediately terminate employment and further
investigate to avoid recurrence.

2. Operating Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the Reporting Period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. The Group prioritises
cooperation with suppliers it has worked with
before to ensure the quality of supplies. All
suppliers are expected to comply with all relevant
environmental and social laws, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in
their own operations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had not engaged with any long-term
key suppliers.

133.33% 13.33 hrs
172.41% 17.24 hrs
66.67% 6.67 hrs

266.67% 26.67 hrs
171.43% 17.14 hrs

B4. X TiZ%E
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RMhEARLMELEE DR
CHAAEELEETHERE
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AEBELREEREZE
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AEERTHEERENE
FAERREER - W3R AR
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BREREAE-

2. #EEH
B5. HIEHEE

RBEHA - RAEZRERME
TR TAMERAHEN BEAE
BMHERE SR 2 RBEREERA

AR EUK - MRS B S B AT
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B6.  Product Responsibility
The Group takes full responsibility for its
products and services, and follows all regulatory
requirements, industry guidelines and internal
procedures on safeguarding customer health
and safety, promoting responsible marketing and
ensuring privacy of information related to the
Group and its business partners. As such, the
following laws and guidelines are therefore strictly
followed by the Group:

Mainland China

B6. EmEF
AEEHHEERMREAES
HEE TEFTHREEEEXR.
TEESIMABET  NEES
PRERZE (REABBENT
HEHNBRERER REE
BEEBRHAEBNEENNLE-
Fi REERBETATER
NHgSl:

Hong Kong
&8

HE R
. Criminal Law
illpz
J Advertising Law
EE
. Cyber Security Law

o Provisions on Protecting the Personal
Information of Telecommunications and
Internet Users

EEMEBRBAFPEAGEERERE

B6.1. Quality Assurance

It is the Group’s aim to provide products and
services that are satisfactory and provide
customer services that are professional. To
ensure that all employees are competent
with advising customers, employees are
required to prepare presentations regarding
the operations’ products regularly as a mean
for management to assess and determine
employees’ performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had
not received any product or service-related
complaints. In addition, there had been no
products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons during the
Reporting Period.
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Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.
486)

EANER (AL GBI (FBIADISE486F )
Office of the Privacy Commission for
Personal Data, Hong Kong

N EUNCRENCE S YN

Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap. 559)
ERRRED (F559%)

Patents Ordinance (Cap. 514)

SHEP] (F514%)

Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528)

ARAE(RDI (£528%)
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B6.2 Confidential Information B6.2 {REE R}

As stated in the employment contract,
employees shall not at any time, during the
course of their employment, and after the
termination of the employment:

J use any confidential information for
his’/her own purpose or for any purpose
other than that of the Group;

e divulge or communicate to any person
any confidential information except
to those of the employees or officials
of the Group whose province it is to
know the same; or

e cause any unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information (including
without limitation), relating to the
dealings, organization, business,
finance, transactions or any other
affairs to the Group or its clients or
customers, through failure of exercising
due care and diligence

All notes, memoranda, records and writings
made by the employees in relation to the
business or concerning any of its dealings or
affairs or the dealings or affairs of any clients
or customers of the Group shall be handed
over by him/her to the Group from time to
time on demand and in any event upon his
leaving the service of the Group and the
employees shall not retain any copy thereof.
A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal
claim for damages.

The Group complies with all applicable
laws regarding confidential information and
data protection of the laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China. No substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of client
privacy, identified leaks, thefts, or losses of
customer information was received during
the Reporting Period.
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B7.

B8.

B6.3 Intellectual Property Rights

The Group attaches great importance to the
protection of intellectual property rights,
and complies with the relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period,
there had been no cases that violate
intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and applicable laws in Mainland China in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
All other guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) and
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) are also
followed by the Group. The Group has a whistle-
blowing policy available for anyone to raise
any concern worthy of the Group’s awareness,
protecting the anonymity of any whistle-blower.
To ensure that directors and its employees familiar
with relevant topics, the Hong Kong office invites
ICAC to deliver training regarding anti-corruption.
There was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the Reporting Period.

In order to enhance the anti-corruption awareness
and level of employees, the directors and
employees of the Hong Kong office received
annual anti-corruption training as offered by the
ICAC during the Reporting Period, which covered
topics such as whistle-blowing, business ethics,
avoiding conflict-of-interest, and anti-bribery.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility, and thus has focused its
contributions on activities and organisations that
are beneficial to the local community. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has encouraged
employee participation of Dress Casual Day, and
has donated HK$3,000 to the Community Chest
for social welfare.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong

Chen Xiaodong, aged 42, is an executive director, the chairman
of the Board of the Company, the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since 2
December 2016 and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since 8 March 2023. He holds a bachelor degree
of management from Royal Holloway, University of London. He
also holds a master of science degree in process technology and
business management from University of Warwick. He has more
than 12 years of experience in bank and securities marketing and
is familiar with the local market and has strong capabilities in
market exploration, customer appraisal and risk management. He
also has extensive experience of regulations and rules of financial
market in Hong Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain
corporate financial analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an
executive director and chief executive officer of Future World
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from
24 December 2018.

Li Jing

Li Jing, aged 37, has been appointed as an executive director, chief
executive officer and a member of Executive Committee of the
Company since 9 December 2022. He is a serial entrepreneur and
partner of an institution with sales of ten billion-level live streaming
performance, is deeply engaged in channel development of brand
supply chains and cultivation of live streaming for top celebrities,
promoting annual sales of several brands exceeding one hundred
million. He has been the founder of Xingyao (2#), a company
engaged in short video live streaming with focusing on celebrities
and artists, since May 2020. He has 15 years of experience in
corporate operation and investment management, and has extensive
experience in media industry. He is an expert in providing a
complete package of solutions, including model innovation,
asset injection and capital operation, for the consumption-
oriented industry to rapidly promote industry upgrading, industry
transformation and investment mergers and acquisitions.
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Yu Qingrui

Yu Qingrui, aged 52, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an executive
director of Future World Holdings Limited.

Song Caini

Song Caini, aged 49, has been appointed as an executive director
of the Company. She is an investor of Youbeiqin Group ( & f&#i 5
&) and has extensive experience in medical industry.

Chen Hongjin

Chen Hongjin, aged 54, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company since 21 February 2022. He has been
the chairman of Yancheng Qingshang Agricultural Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (B EHEEZR K ERAGR A F]) and
Yancheng Qingshang Trading Co., Ltd.* (BB SEHMEERAA])
since November 2014. He was a standing committee member of
the Political Consultative Conference of Tinghu District of Yancheng
City, a member of Yancheng Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president of
Yancheng Junior Chamber of Commerce* (E# M & F <) and
vice chairman of Yancheng Lifengxiang Foundation for Education*
(ZEHFEHEHRRERESE) during 2009 to October 2021. Mr.
Chen has been appointed as a standing committee member of the
Political Consultative Conference of Tinghu District of Yancheng
City since January 2022.

* For identification purpose only

74 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ &£ EIZRER A 7

REH

RES 25 RZE—R"FANAZ+ZHEZ
EAERRRPTESERHNTZEENE REE
RAEAREMBEFUEYHERERB D ES -
REER—NNNFHPEER KFHREHM
BREBSEK - TR S =FXALARES
ZHEIAE—REMBERARNAKLE R ——F
RAEEMALES—HEHELEEQR EEWE
KERKEB-R-_T—NFLtA=-+—H HI4&%
BEEARKRUAZERBRAR (REBHAR
SHERAREREMAAR RMHNRIE:572)
REFEMEREREZNZARBERRE - B
AR EBRRERIERERARNORITES-

RF
RRRE 495 BREEARDARTER- &
AREREENEAL KERTEABERE
,%ﬁu*o

BREtE 54 BN E-_—_F_A-_+—HE
EEARRRTEZE BT —UF+— A
K EETHERERAEREEEERAAR
I EEEEARATNERE - R_EZTNFE
—E-—F+AHE BAEETEHRBBE
Z HEARBAHESERTERBE S - B
mTEFEgRIeRAETRFHELRRES S
FE-B_E-_—_F— AR BRALtEZTAH
WhEREBREE -

* EHRET



Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 60, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014, and the chairman
of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Kwok holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a director of KTC Partners
CPA Limited. He has gained more than 24 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.

Wu Ming

Wu Ming, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.

Li Meifeng

Li Meifeng, aged 32, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company since 8 March 2023. She has extensive experience in
accounting and securities trading in Mainland China and Hong
Kong.
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| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 252, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEESTEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEN R E S

A ESTE I
BRETFHISRBERMANERHE RSEX
PGEAPBRRCBEARAEEZFH - ELF
HREAEHGEMBRREBETETALTLAE
R2EZTNETREN A THELERER
EFER -RMAYTASESFHERTT20OM
B3R Z IR TNALE BB R

B BITARE R BENL B 4R 6 MK
AAEZEE PR B BFEREL
ZEMABZEE -Fi RANES THEREH
TERERYE A VBRI THEERNERRMR
DA MREZREF RANBEFEFERERE
FRIE TN EIEANIT 2R RBEM R A WS H
REREABRIEHER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWESFOMEEFARETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business

EHFRHEEERBELZENE SR B EFIE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected-loss
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(the “ECLs”) of trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9.
BERERBEEEM RS ERFOTARE KA ATIE 1L [T
BERIBEEURBSLMEEEXEHFEL CRERE SR
REREREEEE ([AREEBR]) -

As at 31 December 2023, gross trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, and the related
ECLs amounted to approximately HK$316,456,000 and
HK$256,728,000, respectively.
RIBE_=F+_A=+—H BHFLHPEEEXKE
FZRKESEFREELERBBREEBRIINOR
316,456,00078 7T %2256,728,000/8 7T °

For the assessment of the classification at each stage,
we have understood the internal control system and
checked the outstanding margin receivable balances to
the corresponding values of collateral assets (defined as
loan-to-collateral value);

SRS ERERN Y BRME RS TR AR IEHE
TEEAREERURBSEHREEMEENHEEEE
MR (EEREREERREELE):

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group’s
estimation methodology of ECLs, and checked the
parameters to external data sources where available,
including the price volatility of selected underlying
collateral;
HROBRFIBBRNILALPEEEEREL 2 RK
BHEFCRMACHE ESENAHREEBRMGET
% WA 2 BE TSI BRBERIRETRYE &
TR IE T AR AR R RO B AR R IR -
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Key audit matter

BMEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSETNMEEERETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business (continued)

BSRHEEERFELZ ENEZRAZAETF G (E)

The assessment of ECLs of trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business involves significant
management judgements and estimates, including estimation
of probability of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected
future cash flows and future economic conditions.
EERHEEERBEL CRKREZRAZAREERRE
R R ERBELERAG MG BRYEOHE K
AmfAE BRRKRSRE R ARREBEANR RO

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition.

BEEEEBLERE A HEAER DB ZEMOETFH
NEENEORR FEEVNRERAREERRE LR
e

Related disclosures about trade receivables from securities
and futures dealing business, and its related ECLs are
included in Notes 2(k), 3, 22 and 49 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BELNBEEEXEREA Y ERE SRR L EABER
EEBEBCHEBEESNGE B REM T2 3 22%
49 °

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified as stages 2 and 3, we checked
the price volatility and liquidity of the collateral, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group’s assessment; and
HROBERF2IEBENELRMAEREXRBELL
FEIE 5 BR300 AP A E IR s e (E R RIR R B 1 -
WELEHRERENSESHE AR SEENTH
EITHE &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the ECLs included in the consolidated
financial statements respectively.
BAAIIRE 2 BIEHE FTS K& R BUR - B R A 5T A R AR
BUBHREMEEREEERFBOARKRE-
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSENMEEERETEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business

HMERBELZ EWNEARFEZHEFIE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had gross loan and
interest receivables from money lending business amounting
to approximately HK$438,619,000 and HK$71,925,000,
respectively. The Group had recognised ECLs on loan
and interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$60,713,000 and HK$8,063,000, respectively.
RZZE-_=%F+-"A=+—H EXEBANREEXK
EEZRBERENERED B #438,619,000/ 7T K&
71,925,000/ 7> & & E D5 ERE R KA B HERED
EEEE D 51460,713,0007 7T 528,063,000/ 7T °

The models and assumptions adopted by the management
in estimating ECLs are related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g. the
likelihood of default by customers). The management
believes that they have considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost and effort for this purpose. Such
assessment has taken the quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward-looking analysis.
EEENGFREHREEEBRRRANEL RBRRERKER
BREBEMRARBRANGEE (MEFEOWARELE) B -
EEERS REEEREMANESZAERAIERR
AEFSREFELETLUERARE N - ZEFFECERATE
KB 2 B R A K TR M 3 4

Related disclosures from loan and interest receivables from
money lending business, and their related ECLs are included
in Notes 2(k), 3, 21, 26 and 49 to the consolidated financial
statements.
WMEXBEEZERRERENEUKEABEREREREEE
Z BB BEHNEE M BERRMT2003 21 2649 -

We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
classification of stages based on the past due dates of the
loan and interest receivables.

BAEMEE BERERBEKER R SBEDH
BETEED BN M-

We assessed the effectiveness and marketability of
certain collaterals, including considering fair values of
collaterals and the liquidity of the collaterals.
HAFEETERRm 2 ARE S EHEE BEEEER
an FY A SR Ko 1K 1 qm w1

We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of the
external information used by the Group as the default
rates and forward looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government
bodies and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, etc.

BAEHE ESEREROT AR EER 2SN EER
M & IR KRR - BIRERAT S I B BCRR T 3 48
BEERIEA SIINBENEEEEEREXSE-

We checked the accuracy of the calculation of ECLs
based on the methodology adopted by the Group, as
well as disclosures in relation to credit risk exposed by
the Group in the consolidated financial statements.

BMERERE & REARAY A EEREE
ZRRERGANHBANE AREREZEEAR
RS

We discussed with the management of the Company
and independent valuer, for the reasonableness and
relevance of the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
adopted for the valuation report prepared and issued by
independent valuer.

BB A E R LB 2 BERSARAN
FE BABBRRENGEEREAERE ERAE
BIE B ERMAETTA W o
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Other information included in the annual report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Corporate
Information and Management Discussion and Analysis (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, and the Chairman’s Statement, Report of the
Directors, Corporate Governance Report, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, Biographical Details of Directors and Summary
Financial Information, which are expected to be made available to
us shortly after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statement, Report of the Directors,
Corporate Governance Report, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, Biographical Details of Directors and Summary
Financial Information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the audit committee
of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN ZBENRE S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence of the Company, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number: PO5035
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBmK

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZ —FE_=#F+_-H=+—HIFFZ

2023

FTERT

Revenue WA
Financial investments and services MR E MR
Brokerage and commission income K RBe A
Advisory fee income BRBERA
Consultancy fee income BEREWA
Sales of goods $HE B
Cost of sales and services HERRB A
Brokerage and commission expenses BKrBRARReRX (16,650)
Cost of sales BHE AR (630)
(17,280)
Gross profit EX 72,880

Other income and gains,“(losses), net  H AW A K liiz, (&18)

FEE 11,084

Administrative expenses TERR X (165,781)
Equity-settled share option arrangements % 1 4% & 7 B i& i 22 Bk (21,600)
Other operating expenses H A & E XX (5,712)
Finance costs B 158 A (13,495)
Unrealised fair value losses on equity ~ BBEBRZ A FEYIEREZ

and fund investments at fair value BARERREZ

through profit or loss, net AEBRRNFEEBREFR (5,035)
Unrealised fair value losses on debt FRBEREATEIRZ

investments at fair value through 15 BREZAER

profit or loss, net NP EERFRE (409)
Reversal of credit loss allowance on Hih e MEEFEEE

other financial assets B RO 7,533
Change in fair value of investment REWMERNFEEZS

properties 703
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE 474)
Provision for impairment loss on BRI EE IR

goodwill (636)
Provision for impairment loss on FEREREEE

inventories (2,962)
Share of (losses),”profits of an DIE—RBERRZ

associate (BHE) &7 (8,962)
Share of losses of a joint venture DIE—REBEREZER (890)
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2022
—E——

HK$"000
FHT
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&7
B sE2(b) )

46,779
187,005
34,634

9,422

277,840

(112,719)
(4,322)

(117,041)

160,799

(2,706
(176,868
(18,024
(5,001
(25,838

=z - = =

(29,607)

(19,796)

10,717

3,006




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
LA E

-~

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

2023 2022
T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&7
BisE2(b))
Loss before income tax BRATEHATER (133,756) (103,318)
Income tax expense FRS BRI (95) (2,738)
Loss for the year KEEBHE (133,851) (106,056)
Loss for the year attributable to LTATEEFEFERE
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIE YN (132,864) (107,425)
Non-controlling interests eI HE = (987) 1,369
(133,851) (106,056)
Loss per share attributable to KATER ARG
owners of the Company BREE
Basic and Diluted EARRES (DRI (0.67) cents {1
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Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meazmEkER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z —ZF =

St A AU

Loss for the year

FEEER

Other comprehensive (loss),income

Other comprehensive loss that may
be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Hiv 2| (BE) K#E

ARERNBEREEEN D EE
B Hib2mERE:

BEBINEBZELERE

Other comprehensive (loss),” income that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Equity investments at fair value through

TerERAEER SRR
Baz Hib2m
(BHR) M
BEREMpEERERATE

other other comprehensive income: FIBR 2 IRAIRE -
Changes in fair value, net of tax N EELE) BRFiE
Other comprehensive (loss),”income REFEMEE

for the year (B#B) e
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEREHBEAHE
Total comprehensive loss LTATEEEAFERE

for the year attributable to EiEEE

Owners of the Company AAREBEA

Non-controlling interests FERERS
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2023

HK$’000
TEx

(133,851)

(1,526)

(220,162)

(221,688)
(355,539)

(354,552)
(987)

(355,539)

2022
—E——

HK$’000
FHET
(restated
Note 2(b))
€27
(FFEE2(b) ) )

(106,056)

(4,730)

65,579

60,849

(45,207)

(46,576)
1,369

(45,207)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Notes

B 5E

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB M&RE 13
Investment properties REME 14
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15
Intangible assets BVEE 16
Goodwill [EES 17
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZIRE 18
Equity investments at fair value FREMEERSEAFE

through other comprehensive SR Z AR E

income 19
Deferred tax assets REHRIEEE 20
Loan receivables from money WE R EE 2 RIKE R

lending business 21
Finance lease receivables BMEHERKIA 24
Prepayment, deposits and FANRIE R Rk

other receivables H fth fE U R IE 26
Total non-current assets FERBEERE
Current assets RBEE
Loan receivables from money WMERBE: 2 BWER

lending business 21
Trade receivables from securities BARMIEERRBEELEZ

and futures dealing business FEW & 5 8= K 22
Trade receivables from placing MENREEERRBELEZ

and asset management business FEW E 5 BR K 23
Trade receivables from sales of HERmEEZEKE S

goods BRX
Finance lease receivables &S EIKRIE 24
Inventories ra 25
Prepayments, deposits and other FfNRE Be Kk

receivables H fth & W 58 26
Equity and fund investments at FRBEHEEATEIRZ

fair value through profit or loss BRARAREZIRE 27
Debt investments at fair value FRBEREATEIERZ

through profit or loss BEBERE 28
Cash and bank balances Re RR1TERF 29
Bank balances held on behalf of REBEFPHABIRITHET

clients 30

Total current assets

MEBEERE

RE BRI R R

31 December 2023 —FE_-=Z#+=-H=+—H

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

(restated

Note 2(b))

(L=

(FzE2(0)) )

2,628
5,487

157,180 87,006
392,073

110

124,911

1,646

17,323 23,705
229,577 637,566
347,298 247,918
59,728 147,696
4,310 33,479

- 865

1,646 2,300
4,442 1,796
267,656 163,351
25,681 35,508
166 29,677
22,553 62,388
76,967 691,356
810,447 1,416,334
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e BRI R

31 December2023 —F==#+=H=+—H

Notes
B 5
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables JENE R 31
Lease liabilities HEaE 32
Other payables and accruals H A e~ 58 K e B A 33
Other borrowings HibgE 34
Bank borrowings RITEE 34
Bank overdrafts RITHE X 34
Note payable ENEE 35
Tax payable e F2 1R
Total current liabilities mEBERRE
Net current assets RBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilites EEZEBEBRBAE
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEARE 32
Defined benefit plan obligations RERNGEIEE 36
Total non-current liabilities ERE B ERTE
Net assets FEE
Equity ez
Share capital [N 37
Reserves 1 38

Equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

AREiEm I R E R

Non-controlling interests FEIE A 5
Total equity HmiaR

Chen Xiaodong
BRER R
Director

EF
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2023
—g-=

HK$'000

FEx

2022
—— —

=

HK$'000
T
(restated
Note 2(b))

(L& &7
(M5E2(b)) )

77,573
2,989
13,195
148,425

20,375

255

695,823
3,415
18,226
123,075
39,500
21,638
42,422
1,072

262,812

945,171

547,635

471,163

777,212

1,108,729

528

2,989
666

528

3,655

776,684

1,105,074

167,573
609,083

162,939
938,698

776,656
28

1,101,637
3,437

776,684

1,105,074

Yu Qingrui
REH
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 EZ —FE_=F+_H=+—HIFFZ

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F #

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTEx T T
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&5
MizE2(b))
Cash flows from operating activities K& THEECZRERE
Loss before income tax bR PTG T AT BT 1B (133,756) (103,318)
Adjustments for: MTHIEE (ERE
Bank interest income FRITH BUA 5 (C) (62)
Interest income from finance MEHERKFIELZ
lease receivables FEUA 5 (220) (94)
Interest income from U SR TE 2 F B A
other receivables 5 (6,298) -
Finance costs M ER 6 13,495 25,838
Change in fair value of investment REMERNTEES
properties (703) -
Depreciation on property, plant M- BB RRETE
and equipment 7 1,603 1,582
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEERE 7 2,993 4,955
Reversal of credit loss allowances EthepmEEEFEHIE
on other financial assets BB # (O] (7,533) (10,717)
Equity-settled share option SRz BT
arrangements, net F R 40 21,600 18,024
(Reversal of)/provision for defined AERAFEEMT
benefit plan obligations (BE@) 5HiR 36 (138) 666
Dividend income from investment R ABLFREZ
in listed equity securities P& B A 5 (CZ)) (703)
Dividend income from fund AR EZRBIRA
investment 5 (2,485)
Interest income from investment B EZHRERBRA
in debt investments 5 (6,265)
Share of losses/(profits) of an associate 2§ — 5 & 2 7] 2
e Cal) (3,006)
Share of losses of a joint venture DIE—EEBEREZER -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE =
Loss on modification of note payable  FE{I IR IE ] E51E 5 2,422
Loss on modification of H b U sRIBERT B8
other receivable 5 1,502
Loss on early repayment REERAREBE ZER
of promissory note 18 -
Unrealised fair value losses on equity ZE#BEZmRAFEIERZ
and fund investments at fair value EAREEREZ
through profit or loss, net BRANTEEBEERFE 29,607
Unrealised fair value losses on debt & BB 5IZ A FEYEE 2
investments at fair value through BHIRE 2 RER
profit or loss, net N EEEFRE 19,796
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 #HZ =F = =4+ A =—+—HIFZ

2023

—E-=
Notes HK$’000
BT 5 FTHExT

FRERRAFEIRZ

Realised fair value gains on debt

investments at fair value through BEBREZBHERAFE
profit or loss, net W s F R
Expenses related to short-term lease  E255 HiTH & A RAHY i 2
Gain on modification of lease HEETKE

Gain on early repayment of RPEEHMEWRIEZ
other receivables W s

Gain on early repayment of RPEEREMNRER 2 W
note payable

Provision for impairment loss B EEERE
on goodwill
Provision for impairment loss FEREEIERE
on inventories
Written off on intangible assets WEELEE
Written off on other receivables i £ EL At FE U SR IR
Written off on property, plant and WY B RRE
equipment
Written off on trade receivables i H e UCE B BR R

Operating loss before working
capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables ME ¥ ES 2 EKE R
from money lending business (Em) R

Decrease in equity and fund BEBEREATEIRZ
investments at fair value through BRARESRERD
profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 554 R B E B & £ K EAL

from securities and futures dealing 2 BB 5 BRK

business A, (s )
Decrease in trade receivables from EREEEBREBES

placing and asset management Z EWUE 5 BR FOR A

business
Decrease in finance lease receivables & & T & & YL Zk I8 R
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables X B $H E R ENE F R
from sales wA (HEn)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, ()
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, — TEfI3RI8 2 & K E A
deposits and other receivables JE W R IE R A (3 n)
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances 1%%%:}5%4@_@Eﬁ%
held on behalf of clients R /(iﬁj]l])
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEHE%EE CRd)

#Zn
Increase/(decrease) in other payables — E ff & {5 ZUIE & JEET & F
and accruals g, Ofid)
Decrease in third party interests in EA/\ﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁz
consolidated investment fund = ERRD

EEETEHIINEEBR

(58,439)

(P 00)]

4,792

29,516
2,520

2,670
331

37,997

614,389

(617,914)

24,573
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2022

o
HK$ 000
:F/% JC
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&7
B aE2(b))

(7,424)
4,883
(11)

500
219

(24,087)

39,407

30,443

(6,916)

28,203

2,520

(865)
(1,796)

(78,805)
(531,673)
527,721

(59,683)

(52,662)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEReRER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

2023 2022
—E-= —ZT-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
liks3 THER FET
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&5
FfizE2(b))
Cash generated from/(used in) LEMSG/ (FR)RE
operations 128,621 (128,193)
Expenses related to short-term leases  H245 HiTH & A BH &Y 5 2 (CAPL)) (4,883)
Dividend received B B 94 2,870
Interest received B U F 8 736 6,265
Interest paid BAF A (1,195) (1,178)
Tax paid BT (731) (1,722)
Net cash generated from/(used in) rmEESmE (A2
operating activities ReHA 118,396 (126,841)
Cash flows from investing activites RETZBELEZRESRE
Purchases of items of property, plant  EE Y% - B/E L& EHEE
and equipment (561) (82)
Purchase of investment properties BEREMZE (17,034) -
Acquisition of equity investments Y 3 B K A 2 W s 1R
at fair value through other RNFEFIRZBRARE
comprehensive income (950)
Acquisition of debt investments WhEFE BERR A TEYIER
at fair value through profit or loss ZEBRE (18,101) (42,831)
Acquisition of additional equity e i — A s & A R) 2 B AN
interest in an associate % 2 (79,136) (30,000)
Capital injection to a joint venture M—HEeEERXTE (10,816) -
Proceeds from disposals of equity HEFEBEMEEKREZ
investments at fair value through NHEIRZ RAKRE
other comprehensive income Z P 50E 167,714
Proceeds from disposals of debt HEEBERRATETE
investments at fair value through ZBEBRE ZFREHIE
profit or loss 173,817
Capital injection from non-controlling 3E4% i # 25+ &
interests 2,214
Dividend received B AL R 633
Interest received EEEINE) 62
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition % i U iE — FE I 8 2 =1 U %
of assets through acquisition BEEEEZRESRLFH
of a subsidiary (146)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition Wi —RIMEB R RIELER
of a subsidiary WEMAFRE 44 2,330 =
Net cash outflow arising from disposal & Ff B A A1 E A #)
of subsidiaries WemHFE 45 (1,355) -
Net cash (used in)/generated REEFDH (AR Bz
from investing activities Be %R (96,505) 270,431
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 #HZ =F = =4+ A =—+—HIFZ

2023

—E-=
Notes HK$’000
BT 5 FTHExT

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from issuance
of new shares

Proceeds from other borrowings

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Proceeds from promissory note

Repayment of note payable

Repayment of other borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of promissory note

Repayment of the principal portion
of lease liabilities

Payment for interest portion of
note payable

Payment for interest portion of
other borrowings

Payment for interest portion of
bank borrowings

Payment for interest portion of
promissory note

Payment for interest portion of
lease liabilities

METHELEZHERE
BATHRAD TS FIRF RR

B fEEEHRIEA
RITIEEMERE

A H TS HE
M‘“F’éﬁm%}%
BEMEE
BIRTTEE
EAGEIR
EHEBBELA:IHD

W IR m]n}nTn}A

F“a e Fﬁa

=5 =3 o

SXNEMRENEED
XA EMEEN S D
XA RITEER B
SANERREN B
XNHERENEBY

7,971
40,785

8,645
(38,006)
(15,435)
(39,500)
(10,140)
(3,415)
(5,981)
(1,825)
(1,727)
8)

(261)

(58,897)

Net cash used in financing activities ~BIEEBIFTAZ RS F5

Net decrease in cash and BehBEeEBEEEZ
cash equivalents VAR &

Cash and bank balances FHlzRe MIRTTHETT

at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes, net

SNEFE R BB 2 FEFER

(37,006)

40,750

(1,566)

Cash and cash equivalents FRZRERREEHEER
at end of year
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRAEEERBETF
cash equivalents 23
Cash and bank balances He MIRITEF 29 22,553
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 34 (20,375)

2,178
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2022

—ET- =

HK$’000
FAT
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&7
B aE2(b))

7,780
3,459
10,456

(10,000)
(148,178)
(42,670)
(3,907)
(6,045)

(24,236)

(1,367)

(426)

(215,134)

(71,544)
116,364

(4,070)

40,750

62,388
(21,638)

40,750




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B IS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ_—F_=4F+_H=1+—HIFEZE

Corporate and group information 1. REAIREEER
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the Company) is hESEBEREEAF([ARFAR
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The BREEFMA L2 AR DA H T
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church E Mk A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of Street,Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° KA ]
business of the Company is located at Unit 1801-2,18/F, Far FTELEMBUREEEREBICHRERS
East Finance Centre, No.16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. B0 181818012 ©
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. RAAREEZEBRREER -KNAA ME
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively MEBAR (TXHE(AEE])TERE
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in BARALAEEEER BREEARAK
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and BUAERKMEEXEB - BE_T_=F+_A
equity investments and money lending business. During the =T —HIEFE AEEEHEREAR
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had disposed A ([HE )RR EEEEZER WK
the business in the traditional Chinese medical industry in B E R R R G 3 E R R R Y
the Peoples Republic of China (“PRC”) and expanded new E¥
business in development of customised clothing brands in live
streaming industry in the PRC.
Information about subsidiaries MEQRZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RIEBE_=FR_FT__F+_A=+—
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: H ARREEZEWMB AR ZFBWT:
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
RRAEEREZEAL
Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/
Name and business registered share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
NAER EMRIREBLL Y BRAEER/ZRRE B B FEEH
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 (2022: 100) - Investment holding
Hoshing Limited* EBANES (ES 100 - REBR
(ZZE==#:100)
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 (2022: 100)  Provision of administrative services
1390 XARAF & VES - 100 RETHERE
(ZF==%:100)
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 (2022: 100)  Investment holding
BEUBERAA i AT - 100 REER
(ZE==%:100)
Central Wealth Infrastructure British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 (2022:100)  Investment in and trading of securities
Investment Limited Hong Kong
PEERRAERAR HBRAES/EE %7 - 100(:?::&1) RERERES
100
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 - 100 (2022: 100)  Investment in and trading of securities
Hong Kong
Desert Gold Limited EBRANE/ER 1% - 100(:2::?) REREEES
100
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 (2022: 100)  Money lending
BEHBERAA B VET - 100(ZF=zF: HE
100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 (2022: 100)  Investment holding
Winsey Enterprises Limited* RERAME 1% - 100(:?::@1) REER
100
Central Wealth Securities Hong Kong HK$404,000,000 - 100 (2022: 100)  Brokerage and related services
Investment Limited
PRESREBRAA B 404,000,000 7T - 100(:?::?) B RIRRR
100
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong - - - Brokerage and related services
(Note (1)) (2022: HK$23,500,100) (2022: 100)
PEHEARAA () B - - - BRREERE
(ZZZZ5:23,500,100%7) (ZZZZF:100)
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. RAREEER &)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MiED R ZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributahle to the Company
ARAEEREZEAL
Place of incorporation Issued ordinary/
Name and business registered share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
REEE EMEUREBLLHE BRAEER/HRRE ER B  IERE
Central Wealth Asset Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 (2022: 100)  Asset Management
Management Limited
TEAEEEBRAA B 10,000,007 - 100 AEEER
(ZZZZF:100)
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US§62,500 100 - Investment holding
(2022: 100)
NEBRAR" RERZEE 62,5003 70 100 - REER
(ZZZZ5:100)
Greater China Income Fund Cayman Islands - - - Investment in and trading of debt
(Note (i) (2022: US$3,552,974%) (2022: 100) instruments
Greater China Income Fund FEHE - - - BEBIARERER
GEL) (B ZF:135597457F) (ZFZZF:100)
Central Wealth Comnerstone The PRC RMB135,235,701 - 100 (2022: 100)  Advisory service in debt capital market
(Shanghai) Consulting Co Ltd* (2022: RMB116,146,995) and investment in the fund
PEERD (L) LRHS P AEH135,235,701 7T - 100 GBREADSERRBREERE
BRAR* (ZZZZF: AR¥%116,146,9957T) (ZFZZF:100)
Youbeigin (Guangdong) Mediical The PRC - - - Trading of tradition Chinese medicines
Technology Co., Ltd. (Note (i) (2022: RMB500,000) (2022: 51) and supplements
ERERBERRENRARLAT @ - - - TERBERES
B (2B 2% ARH500,0007) (ZF=2%:51)
Daqi Culture (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Development of customised clothing
(Note (iv)) (2022: Nil) (2022: Nil) brand in live streaming industry
EROUE ORI BRAT TE AR1,000,0007 - 100 REREXFEERLRERE
(HiEE(v)) (Z2ZZF:8) (ZFZ2F:8)
Kunming Kaidian Management The PRC RMB10,000 - 99 Provision of consultancy service
Consulting Co., Ltd (Note (v)) (2022: Nil) (2022: Nil)
ERIAEEAABRAA Gk ARE10,0007 - 9 REBERE
(MEw) (Z2z2%:8) (ZF=2&:8)
Shenzhen Zhongda Youbeigin The PRC RMB10,000 - 99 Provision of consultancy service
Medical Technology (2022: Nil) (2022: Nil)
Management Co., Ltd (Note (vi))
RAPEREREANIER 78 AEE100007 - 9 REBHED
BRAR (M) (ZBZF:8) (ZBZZF:8)
* Not audited by Moore CPA Limited or another member firm of * REREFEEGTAELMER A A
the Moore Global Network Limited REF2HBEEMKERRER
‘ The shares represented participating shares ‘ A& 17 #5 2 ER AR 19
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Corporate and group information (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Notes

(vi)

The company has been dissolved on 8 December 2023

The fund has been fully redeemed by a wholly owned
subsidiary on 20 December 2023

On 25 May 2023, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary has
disposed entire 51% of equity interest in the company

On 5 January 2023, the company was incorporated in the PRC
where the Group held 60% of equity interest in the company.
On 20 December 2023, the Group has acquired the remaining
40% equity interest in the company and become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary

The Group incorporated the company under the PRC laws on

17 May 2023, and holds 99% equity interest in the company

The Group incorporated the wholly owned subsidiary under
the PRC laws on 30 January 2023

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

1.

PEAIREEER (#)
HEBARZEE (&)

B aE

(vi)

ZARERZZEZ=F+ZAN\B#EH

ZESENR-_E-_=F+-F-t+HHha2z
BHIB AR BREER

R-E-_=FRA-+HAE —EHEE:
BEH B AR HEZ AR EE51% MK E

R-EB-_=%—FhAB ZAaR&EPEF
A NEEHE B Z R A60% K IR 4E -
RZZEZ=F+A=+H AEEKE
%A BT 8840% BRIEW A A REE 2 E W B

NG

AEEBRBPBEZER -_Z-_=F0A
TERRIZRE FHZRAFI% KK
1

AEERBEPEEENR _ZT-_=F—H
=T EEMRZEZENB AR

FRINBARBAETR YA FEAREE
XERAIZPEIBRASHEEEFET
BMROZARBMBRAR - ARAEER
REEMHBARZEMNIILESRIEB
Rtk
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _ =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy

information

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the equity, fund and debt investments
and investment properties which have been measured at fair
values. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”), which is the functional
currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

(@) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

2.

REMBRREREEREX
SRERER

WESEAMBRRVIZRBLESHANAE
(IEREMAG)HEM 2B BMBTHRS
EH([BEBMBREER]) (BEMBEE
BMBHRELEN FEGHER([FEE
FER]) LRE) BEARGAHRULE
BRARGIHZEBEREMmE - LLEHE
MBREMBETELEMAXZMERATA
Er EWARR(TEWRA]) 2 8B E &
Xo

U FHE P BHRERIRBE L KAE RS -
HERAFEFEZ#D 2 REBR
BUARBEMERIN - FHRAPHHRER
UARRZHee ER AT ([Ex])IR:
B BEEAN MAEBEANEERED
FhLe

(@ %ﬂ%ﬁﬂ&%@ﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬁ%
R
RAFE NEERGRESMBER
KECHERERABBEMAGHE
2 NIEER]ERMBREER
HZEEAN_T_=F—HA—B=
& F6 < F 2 HIRE R I A R0

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts ERFEREER RBREYL
October 2020 and February BH17% (BE-F
2022 Amendments to —ZEF+ARZE
HKFRS 17) —ZFE-AZEE
B s 2E A
F17H 25T
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of EReERFEIY SHEREE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Accounting Policies LEBBBERE
EEBRE
E2| 2 1BE]
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of & et Ed SIHEETHEE
Accounting Estimates F8R 2185
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets EnezER| WME - 5EER
and Liabilities arising 81258 2 1BF] EEKEERHE
from a Single Transaction KB ERE IR
Amendments to HKAS 12 International tax reform EA AR BB R e —
— Pillar Two Model Rules EXVEvd SR ZHBIE R

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ£BIZREMRA A

RMZSFRIET BB B HRE LR
AEEAFEMBEFE MR
ERBE U EE56 P BREME
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(b)

Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR gazetted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the
use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance
payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition will
officially take effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). In addition, under the Amendment Ordinance,
the last month’s salary immediately preceding the
Transition Date (instead of the date of termination of
employment) is used to calculate the portion of LSP in
respect of the employment period before the Transition
Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance
for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the
impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has
implemented the guidance published by the HKICPA in
connection with the LSP obligation retrospectively so as
to provide more reliable and more relevant information
about the effects of the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with
the employee and which could be used to offset the
employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by
the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group
has been applying the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered.

2.

#R

=

198
=

(b)

AUBHRERUEER B X

BEER (@)

EREEEMAEH (FEW
HasMtARE ((REE))ER
HREE (TRERE ) BHEEH
B8 RHzESIMERS
FTHGREV 2 B

RZBZ_FXA BERRBAHR
(CE-_—_FRBREKRGFEDER
(B BE) (R GO (85T
B ) TR - BUH 8 X 8 8 58 Hl 1R 7E
B (R AT EE AR ) R B AR R B B
BNRRESOHOE ([ZEBUE]) - W
HER_ZE_RAFRA-BERXEXN
(MBEBE]) - ptoh - RIBERTERD] -
ARFEERARMZERABRRS
o REZEER A H (M IEEEB )
AIMRE— @AM AR

R-ZB_=F+tHA BEGHANLE
B (FAEBURRESBRRE HH
BENEATE)  RYEPEINE
AREMEFEDERESERRES Y
B TELNTERRMIES -BE
Rt AEBEEPERE L ST
REREREEHEMOES U
B EEI RZBORREEANERES
EEER -

AEEKREIRBESHIAEEND
FETEEYAARNIEHESRHAR
BeRinREEaGEERRY
AR & 1F VAR AE K - RIR A 1B
f NREE-ERBEB G ELSE
19585 93(b) R B M BIREE 25t
AR VER B HRARIIELRR 18R AR
BB AR D
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy

information (continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long

Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in

Hong Kong (continued)

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of the
Abolition, these contributions are no longer considered
“linked solely to the employee’s service in that period”
since the mandatory employer MPF contributions after
the Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-
transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it would not be
appropriate to view the contributions as “independent
of the number of years of service” and the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer
applicable. Instead, these deemed contributions should
be attributed to periods of service in the same manner as
the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS
19. Accordingly, the Group has recognised a cumulative
catch-up adjustment in profit or loss for the service
cost, interest expense and remeasurement effect from
changes in actuarial assumptions for the year ended 31
December 2022, with corresponding adjustment to the
LSP obligation. The cumulative catch-up adjustment is
calculated as the difference at the enactment date (16
June 2022) between the carrying amount of the LSP
liability calculated under paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
before the Abolition and the carrying amount of the LSP
liability calculated under paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19

after the Abolition.

The following table summarises the impact of the
adoption of the HKICPA guidance on the comparative
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022. The adoption of the HKICPA guidance
would not have impact on the cash flows for the year

ended 31 December 2022.

100 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited # & EiZ R H R 2 7

2.

n\li\

=

(b)

AHBHRMUBEREA

BEER (#)

EREEETMAEH (FEH
HasMtARE ((REE])ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA
statements and material accounting policy S BERER (80

information (continued)
(b) Changes in accounting policy as a result of (b) ERAEBEMAER (FEW
HEFMARE ([BRE)HER

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
HREE (TRERE ) BHEEH

accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long S E) #HZESIMENE

Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in STBCRAVE B (4)
Hong Kong (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_F+=-A=+—HLHF
g
The abolition
As of MPF-LSP
previously offsetting
reported mechanism Total
HUE®RES -
RHR% 2
G-I HEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET
Consolidated statement of BZ-_F-—F
profit of loss for the year +=A=+-H
ended 31 December 2022 I FEWGE A%
Employee benefits expenses & 8B AF % (152,937) (666) (153,603)
Loss before taxation MR AT E 1R (102,652) (666) (103,318)
Income tax expense FTigfim > (2,738) - (2,738)
Loss for the year AFEEER (105,390) (666) (106,056)
Consolidated statement R-E-—F
of financial position as at t+t=ZA=+—H
31 December 2022 WG BMR T Z
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 637,566 - 637,566
Total assets less current liabilites ZEAERRDEE 1,108,729 = 1,108,729
Defined benefit plan obligations ~ R E&FFHEEE - (666) (666)
Total non-current liabilities FERDEELEE (2,989) (666) (3,655)
Net assets FEE 1,105,740 (666) 1,105,074
Reserves 1 939,364 (666) 938,698
Total equity R A 1,105,740 (666) 1,105,074
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(o)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA
statements and material accounting policy at R
information (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued) (c) FEREEE (%)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an 5 =B MBI KA £ XA 12 i 4
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there ZZBEHEHRBE-ENZIEEE
are changes to one or more of the three elements of AEBEEHRFIHEROTREHKREY
control described above. A change in the ownership RZEHRE NI BRREEEER
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is 2B (WK EITERE)RNARE
accounted for as an equity transaction. IIVERERR 5

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it il 7N &% B 2k K BT B R B 2 122 il 4 - Al
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) RIFBRODZMNBRARZEE (B
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying FERE)RAE (i) EhEERER
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the ZEMENGINT AR AFTIER
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; ZRE WHER () BB Z 2 FE (i)
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration EREREIRE 2 2 FE R Gii) 7 A
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained Ba 2 EEERARSEA - RS
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. EEERHERMEERBE KA
The Group’s share of components previously recognised REMEEREERANAEEEN
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit Bty TR FIERIRERELEEH 7
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same HEBRNRE RN -

basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

(d) Business combination and goodwill d) ¥BEREE

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration AREBREZARIBAR HEAERMA
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits EERERG ATH AW — AR
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of HREERRWIHF—HEBEGICT
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration AT BEEEN A TELETE
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the HEEREE A BRI EES —EH
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single URIBREES  BIFaEFEAH -
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. AR EETRRRE NASEHE
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and MORLERBAEE LABRERIESR
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill BEXEEF B -HMAESEREAR
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If A ZAERPLEEREERLIEE
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and % R B AEEE — P F o

assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(d)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquirees identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA

statements and material accounting policy

;rft&%ﬁﬂ@l(%)

=

information (continued)

(d)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(e)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decision of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, less any impairment losses,
unless it is classified as held for sale. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(e)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to zero and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other
cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

®

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining lease terms
or 3 years, whichever is

shorter

Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years

fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

®

(®)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties is interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for properties which would otherwise meet the
definition of investment properties) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment properties is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _ =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

@)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than financial assets deferred tax assets and investment
properties), the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated. An assets recoverable amount is the higher
of the value in use of the asset or cash-generating unit
to which it belongs and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA

statements and material accounting policy

;rft&%ﬁﬂ@l(%g)

=

information (continued)

()

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial assets contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for Revenue
recognition below. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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RE SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(j) Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income,
and fair value through profit or loss. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if

both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on

an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are

not subject to impairment assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HREMBEHRRFEREEREK
statements and material accounting policy B ERERER 30

information (continued)

()

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

()

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a pass-
through arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA
statements and material accounting policy S BERER (80

information (continued)

(j) Investments and other financial assets (continued) () RBRERHMEMEE (#)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued) RIFEREHEE (&)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive MASEDEEEWRZBAEEMS
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- WEMENEN KBTI LENZHE
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, FHEELREBEZEEMAREZAR
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of Ko [B1 3] e H K o 8 I M 8% R 5l (R BB
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained ZEEENBRIDER KB ®K B
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor WEREEZAEENZEGE XEH
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues BEMACEZEE MUAEER
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the B2ERBR-EWBERT XEEITT
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group HREBEE - CEEEERIERE
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred ERERAEBAREENREEZ
asset and the associated liability are measured on a EEAE-
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a NERTAEBE2HCEREE
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the RZEEZREAERASEIKE
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and REEREBRSEMER ZIBRIESE
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group TEe
could be required to repay.

(k) Impairment of financial assets k) =EEEBE

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin
clients and receivables from cash clients, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due. The Group considers these financial
assets are in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA

statements and material accounting policy

;ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ)

=

information (continued)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value
(“LTV”) to make its assessment. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is a margin
shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account the pledged securities held by the Group. A
margin client receivable is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs.

Stage 1

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(k)

U]

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has applied loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals, lease liabilities, bank overdrafts and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and note
payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Modification of financial liabilities

Except for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform in which the Group applies the
practical expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial liability are modified, the Group assess
whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10
percent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

0]

(m)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Modification of financial liabilities (continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests
of a property which includes both leasehold land and
non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.

120 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited # & E1Z R H R 2 7

2.

=

0]

(m)

me
FTEERER (@)

MBBEREREEREX

TWMEE ()

CiTz @A E (8)
RTEERRIEANERABIE
ANER HETRAENREE/R
TREERERMERMEANEETA
RARERAEFE - AEER SRR
LERAREEESRBENET
ERRBTHE&#FE - THEREE
AREEA FEIMERT A BB TR -

AT RZHEH

P IR A RO TT 2 R SE
R MERFEFEEELRR
BREENFERER 2REENR
TRBET A ERKE WIEFES
HR AR R A

HE

BENT 5

A 0 BRIA BTG TE—BREY
P2 1 T 3 34 2 G5 PR 0 R - B3
ANARERREHE -

AEBERAA
BRESEES AR D

e —BEHEEEARY K —EK
ZRFIEELFEEARTEONA
# ANEBREHEEEKE D WEY
BEERIIFHEEAXRBINERE
REMBEOIRESEESEHEES
RED - RRERBE-EDE (BFEE
S+t RIFEERFAKE D) MM
BRESHAKN ETERFEDER
BN o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

=

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(m) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
(continued)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

J an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy

information (continued)

(m) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful

life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate

as at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;

and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2.

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(m) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z
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Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index

or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the
respective leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
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rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding

in respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy

information (continued)

(m) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Sub-lease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the

underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head
lease (adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with
the sub-lease) to measure the net investment in the sub-
lease if the interest rate implicit in the sub-lease cannot

be readily determined.

(n) Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral

part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and cash at banks, which are not

restricted as to use.

(o) Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients” monies as bank
balances held on behalf of customers under the current
assets section of the consolidated financial position
and recognised a corresponding trade payable to
respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss

or misappropriation of clients” monies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA

statements and material accounting policy

;rft&%ﬁﬂ@l(%g)

=

information (continued)

(p) Provisions (p BHE
A provision is recognised when a present obligation ERRNBEESEHEYERAAEELE
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a S HEE B E AR A BE B IR R B IRIA
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of BITEME Beerl At EE 285
resources will be required to settle the obligation, Al g MR BE -
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount T IR L B E K - Bl Pl o 5 1 B RE
recognised for a provision is the present value at the RIEFTBITE XS 2 R KFHER
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures EHRZH(E R E R E T IRE
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The BNz FIEFAGRERER UG E
increase in the discounted present value amount arising e
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(@ Income tax (q FIEH

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(q) Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(q

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

J the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

J the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ _H=+—HI-F/F

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Commission income from securities and futures dealing

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the customer has received the service from
the Group, generally when the trades are executed.
Commission and handling income on securities and
futures dealing and broking is generally due within two
days after trade date.

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
rendered.

Management fee income

The Group provides asset management and investment
advisory services on diversified and comprehensive
investment products to customers. Management fee
income is charged at a fixed percentage per month on
the net asset value of the fund managed by Group. The
management fee income is recognised when it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
net asset value of the fund is confirmed at each month
end.

Performance fee income

The Group is entitled to performance fee income from
its fund management business when the net asset value
of the fund exceeds certain benchmark at the end of the
relevant performance period. Similar to the management
fee income of the fund, the performance fee income is
recognised when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the net asset value of the fund is
confirmed at each relevant performance period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Consultancy fee income

The Group provides consultancy service in relation to
provision of professional guidance and assistance to
customers for opening medical stores in the PRC.

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
completed.

Revenue from other sources
Properties rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group'’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. FEMBREMRELEREA

statements and material accounting policy

;rft&%ﬁﬂ@l(%g)

=

information (continued)

(s)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

(s)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(s)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2.

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
() Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z
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rules of the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the lower of 5% of the
employees’ relevant income or HK$1,500 each month.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group

AEERTREERBZMBARZ

which operate in the PRC are required to participate BREASEHMTTERNER 2R

in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a prescribed percentage of their
payroll costs, subject to certain ceilings imposed, to
the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
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F TR T ERK AR TE D
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central pension scheme. The applicable percentages
for the central pension scheme for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 are listed below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy

information (continued)
(t) Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

2.

REVBBREREEREKN

FREER (#)

Pension insurance BZRE
Medical insurance BERR
Maternity insurance £ BRI
Unemployment insurance RERR
Work-related injury insurance ~ L{5{RE
Housing provident fund FERAESR

Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2.

statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(t Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain
or loss on settlement is recognised when settlement
occurs. When determining past service cost, or a gain
or loss on settlement, an entity shall remeasure the net
defined benefit liability or asset using the current fair
value of plan assets and current actuarial assumptions,
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the
plan assets before and after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, without considering the effect
of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan). Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. However, if the Group remeasures
the net defined benefit liability or asset before plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, the Group
determines net interest for the remainder of the annual
reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement and the discount rate used to
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remeasure such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from

contributions or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, .
past service cost, as well as gains and losses on

curtailments and settlements);
o net interest expense or income; and

° remeasurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

®

Other employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation
is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or
third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there
will be contributions from employees or third parties,
the accounting depends on whether the contributions
are linked to service, as follows:

. If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example contributions are required to reduce
a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or
from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
or asset.

J If contributions are linked to services, they reduce
service costs. For the amount of contribution that
is dependent on the number of years of service,
the entity reduces service cost by attributing
the contributions to periods of service using
the attribution method required by HKAS 19
paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For the amount
of contribution that is independent of the number
of years of service, the entity reduces service cost
by attributing contributions to the employees’
periods of service in accordance with HKAS 19
paragraph 70.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost arising from
the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

®

(w)

(v)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plan (continued)
Reimbursement assets

The Group recognises reimbursement asset as a
separate asset because it is virtually certain that another
party (e.g. the trustee) will reimburse some or all of
the expenditure required to settle LSP obligation of
the Group, capped at the portion related to accrued
benefits before the Transition Date. The Group measures
the reimbursement assets at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The changes in fair value are
disaggregated and recognised in the same way as for
changes in fair value of plan assets. The components of
the defined benefit cost recognised is recognised net of
amounts relating to changes in the carrying amount of
the right to reimbursement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(v)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(v)

(w)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participants ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)

(w)

(x)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Governments grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relate to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under other
income and gains/(losses), net.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
%ﬁéﬁi‘%i&% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ _H=+—HI-F/F

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 2. HLREMBEHRRFREEREK

statements and material accounting policy BT BERER (8
information (continued)
(y) Related parties (y BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — B RAEEZREAL
() the party is a person or a close member of that ) ZABALTHZALZER M
person’s family and that person ZAL
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) 70 1 X 2k (R 42 ) AN B [
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (il HAEEBBEERFEN:
B9

(i) is a member of the key management (i) RAEEIKREEE AT
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the ZEEEREXE
Group;

or 17
(I the party is an entity where any of the following (1 MH?%H THEMA RG22 B

conditions applies: e

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the (i) REREAEBEBR %
same group; B E AR

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of i) —EBRZ—HEB(IH
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or —ERBZEBRAR-MER
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); CIEACESGI=PNCIDA:-:

ERAHAEDRE

(ili) the entity and the Group are joint ventures (i) ZEREXAXEERF -
of the same third party; EHZAERE:

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —BEBRE=FEEZE
and the other entity is an associate of the X - ME—EBERRSE
third entity; ZHEBZBERA:

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) ZERBRAEENEAE
for the benefit of employees of either the EEHEERBMESN
Group or an entity related to the Group; AL 7 BERR1Z B FIET A

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) ZEBX()MHEIALE
by a person identified in (1); il S R %

(vii) a person identified in (I)(i) has significant (i) MG FTHBIATHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of REEAZENIEZE
the key management personnel of the entity B(XZERBZERR)E

(or of a parent of the entity); and EBEKE R

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (viii) ZERBKHEE ZER/KX
which it is a part, provides key management 8 R 7] ﬁﬁ%ﬁi$§§
personnel services to the Group or to the BRAARHIEEEASR
parent of the Group. AR# o
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements and material accounting policy
information (continued)
(z) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average cost basis and includes all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the
directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ _H=+—HI-F/F

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
The directors of the Company have considered the
development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical
accounting judgements and estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the following
judgements which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment funds

As at 31 December 2022, the Group invested in investment
funds which the Group concluded that it has control over the
relevant activities of the funds despite the fact that the Group
does not hold more than half of the participating shares of the
funds.

All facts and circumstances have been taken into
consideration by the directors of the Company in the
assessment of whether the Group, as an investor, controls the
investment funds. The principle includes the following three
elements of control: (a) power over the investment funds; (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with
the investment funds; and (c) the ability to use power over the
investment funds to affect the amount of the investors returns.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has effectively held
100% interest in a fund established in the Cayman Islands
(“the Cayman Fund”). In marking the judgement as to whether
the Group has control over the funds, the directors of the
Company considered the fact that the Group is the only
general partner of the funds and is acting as the fund manager
of the fund in accordance with the management agreement.
The Group has the rights to all decision making about the
operation of the funds and is able to direct the relevant
activities such as acquisition and disposal of underlying
assets of the funds at its sole discretion. In addition, the
fund manager could not be removed by other participating
shareholders, who are only entitled to the shared returns on
the funds based on its net asset value but did not have any
voting rights to the funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _ =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment funds (continued)
After assessment, the directors of the Company concluded
that the Group has control over the funds and is accounted
for as subsidiaries of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
fully redeemed its interest in the Cayman Fund. As at 31
December 2023, the Group did not have any investment in
funds.

Determination of transactions between Youbeiqin
(Guangdong) Medical Technology Co., Ltd. and its partners in
the PRC

On 21 February 2022, the Group has acquired 51% of
the equity interests in Youbeiqin (Guangdong) Medical
Technology Co., Ltd (“Guangdong Youbeiqin”). Subsequently,
Guangdong Youbeiqin and its partners (the “Partners”)
entered into cooperation agreements to form new companies
with registered capital in the PRC and in the opinion of
the directors, adopted the general template of articles of
association commonly adopted in the PRC. According to the
cooperation agreements, Guangdong Youbeigin holds 51%
equity interest of each of the newly incorporated companies,
with term of 2 years (the “Clinics”). Each of the Partners and
its ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties
and non-connected persons of the Company. Details of the
cooperation were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 4 May 2022.

From the incorporation of new companies and until 31
December 2022, Guangdong Youbeiqin has not injected any
capital as stated in the adopted articles of association, and
has not appointed any director to the Clinics. The Partners
are the fund providers for the Clinics’ setup and operations,
furthermore, the Partners directly and solely appointed the
directors for each newly formed company at their discretion,
in order to manage the operational and financial decisions
and activities directly. In view of that, cooperation progress
confirmation between Guangdong Youbeiqin and Partners are
signed to clarify all the profit or loss arisen from the Clinics
are attributable to the Partners, and Guangdong Youbeiqin
is not entitled to any profit or not responsible for any loss/
liabilities for the Clinics as of 31 December 2022. In addition,
legal opinion issued by an independent lawyer registered in
the PRC, has been obtained by the directors to confirm the
validity of the cooperation progress confirmation, and neither
infringement of entered parties” beneficial interests nor breach
of the PRC laws is noted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Determination of transactions between Youbeiqin
(Guangdong) Medical Technology Co., Ltd. and its partners in
the PRC (continued)

Based on the actual business circumstances, written
consent with Partners according to the cooperation progress
confirmation and the legal opinion obtained, the directors
of the Company concluded that the Group has no control
over the Clinics as described under HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements” nor beneficiary interest in the Clinics,
Guangdong Youbeiqin recorded its transactions with the
Partners as sales of goods in its financial statements.

On 25 May 2023, the Group has disposed the entire 51%
equity interest of Guangdong Youbeiqin at a consideration
of RMB1, and resulted a loss of disposal of approximately
HK$369,000 during the year.

Determination of the control over Daqi Culture (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.

On 28 December 2022, Shenzhen Zhongda Enterprise
Consulting Co, Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
has entered into a cooperation framework agreement with
a PRC company, F B E E# % H R 2 & (Zhongqi Media
Technology Co., Ltd*) (“Zhongqi Media Technology”).

As a result, a joint venture company, namely B30 (&
JI) B BR A @l (Dagi Culture (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) was set-
up in the PRC on 5 January 2023 (“Daqi Culture”). Dagqi
Culture is principally engaged in retail and wholesale of
clothing products via online platform in the PRC, where
60% of its equity interest held by the Group and 40% of its
equity interest held by Zhongqi Media Technology. Upon
incorporation of Daqi Culture, Zhongqi Media Technology
has appointed a sole director to Daqgi Culture to manage the
operational and financial decisions and activities directly. The
Group and Zhonggi Media Technology is having joint control
to Daqi Culture, and the equity interests only indicates the
share of profit or loss.

Based on the actual business circumstances, the directors of
the Company concluded that the Group has no control over
Daqi Culture as described under HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”.

* For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)
Determination of the control over Daqi Culture (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (continued)
On 9 December 2023, pursuant to the equity transfer
agreement with Zhongqi Media Technology, the Group has
further acquired the remaining 40% equity interest in Dagqi
Culture, the acquisition was completed on 20 December
2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Group held 100% equity
interest in Daqi Culture and being consolidated to the Group
under HKFRS 10. The acquisition in equity interest is having a
change in control over Daqi Culture and treated as a business
combination.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below:

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business

The Group calculates the ECLs of trade receivables from
margin clients and cash clients by estimating the probability
of decline in expected future collateral prices and liquidity of
collateral, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Credit loss allowances of loan receivables from money
lending business and other receivables

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from individual clients based on the loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from corporate clients based on these loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, adjusted for forward-looking futures specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the placing
and asset management business

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has applied loss rates which are reference to the
default rates from international credit rating agencies, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a counterparty
is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When certain events
occur, the Group carefully considers whether the events
should result in determining the counterparties as defaulted.

Other than the above, no credit loss allowance has been
provided for other financial assets as the related credit loss
allowance were immaterial.

As at the end of the reporting date, the credit loss allowance
for each type of financial assets is as follows:

B ARHE R MA@

THEE MG (8
HEREEEEREIENESHKAIZE
BRI

AEEGHEEREEBE BT EAELE.
RAR R L0X - AN SR B3 856 5 & LR 1)
i RMNEREBHAREE2HELE
EERERBERB - ARERAERE
(2ZBRERAFMABBIELNENE)
WL EH A REERFHFEAEIERE
fEHAAEE

ERERZHNTREENNE T EN—
o REETE B A ERA N ARG
MMERBR - EXLEEHEHE A5E
EHHAZRZREEHTREOERETER Y
TRRER-

M b SCAT IR S - A R A A
REEBERE RRANBEEFER
BETEA-

REFEEEHR SELREENEERIE
BEmT

Loan receivables from money
lending business
Trade receivables from securities and

MEEBESE 2 BRER

EFLMEEERBEEL

futures dealing business FEW E 5 BRK

Trade receivables from placingand ~BLEREEBREBEEL
asset management business FEWE 5 BRI

Other receivables H A & W R IR

2023 2022
—E-=5F —=EFT-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
60,713 60,590
256,728 262,068
205 747
8,063 9,837
325,709 333,242

Further details are set out in Notes 21, 22, 23 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _ =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular
legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has
been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on
an assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories.
Write-down is applied to the inventories where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is less than cost. The determination of net realisable
value requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact carrying value of the inventories and
write-down on inventories charged to profit or loss in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Operating segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments are
as follows:

(@ the financial investments and services segment
comprises financial investments and trading, debt, fund
and equity investments and money lending business;

(b) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities and futures contracts
services; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income, consultancy fee income, sales of goods and
expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is measured consistently with the Group’s loss before
income tax except that bank interest income, share of profits
of an associate, finance cost, head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued)
Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, investment
in an associate, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude note payable, bank overdrafts,
bank borrowings, other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, advisory fee
income has been classified and recorded in the corporate
and others segment. In the opinion of the directors, to be
consist in presentation according to the operating business
nature, such income is being reclassified into the financial
investments and services segment in 2023.

The comparative figures of segment revenue, result, assets and
liabilities were re-presented to conform with current year’s
presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. RETEER )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+=-A=+—-HLHFE
Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
BERE .
R R RERfEE TERHEAM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET TER
Segment revenue: FERA:
External IhR 24,086 54,037 12,037 90,160
Intersegment sales HEREE = 44 = 44
24,086 54,081 12,037 90,204
Elimination g (44) (44)
Total @it 24,086 54,037 12,037 90,160
Segment results TERE (613) (50,983) (53,400) (104,996)
Reconciliation: K
Bank interest income H|ATHIBHA 97
Unallocated expenses ADERX (5,036)
Finance costs BBER (13,495)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 1 & /B2 72 E#E 474)
Share of losses of an associate HME—HBE AR ZER (8,962)
Share of losses of a joint venture ~ AME—H&&E X2 EE (890)
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIER (133,756)
Income tax expense PrEHF X (95)
Loss for the year AEREER (133,851)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Segment assets DEEE 646,190 151,753 61,875 859,818
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated assets AOBMEE 180,206
Total assets BEBE 1,040,024
Segment liabilities NEEE 80,596 12,789 93,582
Reconciliation: Ea)
Unallocated liabilities AOWMEE 169,758
Total liabilities BERE 263,340
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

RESFER (|

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4,

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEFE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others  Consolidated
MHEAE |
K AR e ke rEREM R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL FAL FAEL
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(&E7|) (&&E7|) (&&E7|) (&&E7|)
Segment revenue: PEBA:
External IR 81,413 187,005 9,422 277,840
Intersegment sales DERIEE - 1,511 1,839 3,350
81,413 188,516 11,261 281,190
Elimination 85 - (1,511) (1,839) (3,350)
Total st 81,413 187,005 9,422 277,840
Segment results PERE (10,922) (20,171) (48,487) (79,580)
Reconciliation: K
Bank interest income RITRBUWA 62
Unallocated expenses AREHRX (968)
Finance costs 878 A (25,838)
Share of profits of an associate ME—EEBE QR 28 3,006
Loss before income tax BETSH A& (103,318)
Income tax expense FiEHAY (2,738)
Loss for the year REEBR (106,056)
Assets and liabilities BEEREHE
Segment assets NEEE 981,652 878,817 43,904 1,904,373
Reconciliation: #ik:
Unallocated assets AOWMEE 149,527
Total assets EEBE 2,053,900
Segment liabilities DEARE 646 706,390 14,021 721,057
Reconciliation: R
Unallocated liabilities AOREE 227,769
Total liabilities aEBE 948,826
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A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REIEER )
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+-A=+-HLEFE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others Consolidated

R BERRE TERHEM G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTER FTER FTER

Depreciation on property, plant and nE BERRENE
equipment 292 1,311 1,603

Depreciation on right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,993 2,993
Provision for credit loss allowances on MEEBELZENETZ

loan receivable from money FEFRBEARIE
lending business, net

Reversal of credit loss allowances on BANBESEERESLY
trade receivables from securities and EREFEZEEER
futures dealing business, net BEREFR

Reversal of credit loss allowances on REREEEBERESLY
trade receivables from placing and RUEHEH EEBE
asset management business, net BERDFE

Reversal of credit loss allowances on BNHE Re REMEY
financial assets included in prepayments, FEBEZEBHEAEZ

deposits and other receivables, net FEBERERDTE
Written off on other receivables 5 EL A B W 50
Written off on trade receivables MiEENE ST
Capital expenditure* BARY*
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * EXAXBEBEYE BEMRE
equipment. it e
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. RETEER )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-A=t+—HIL&EE
Financial Brokerage
investments and Corporate
and services commission and others Consolidated
HHEE
R R Bk PEREM ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL THL THL
Depreciation on property, plant and nxE BERRENE
equipment - 389 1,193 1,582
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEEME - 305 4,650 4,955
Provision for credit loss allowances on HEEBEEZERNEHZ
loan receivables from money lending FEFREBIRIE
business, net 13,153 - - 13,153
Reversal of credit loss allowances on BARBESEERESEY
trade receivables from securities and BUESEFCEEFE
futures dealing business, net BERDFE - (10,664) - (10,664)
Reversal of credit loss allowances on REREEEBERESEY
trade receivables from placing and RUWESH EEBRER
asset management business, net BEEFR - (15,692) - (15,692)
Provision for credit loss allowances on ~ TAfTFUE & REMEY
financial assets included in prepayments, FEBELEHEEL
deposits and other receivables, net FEBERERTE 2,486 - - 2,486
Written off on other receivables MEE R - 219 - 219
Written off on intangible assets MHEVEE - 500 - 500
Capital expenditure* BEARRX - - 82 82
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BRRAXBIEREYE WEKEHE-

equipment.

154  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ & EZRE R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Operating segment information (continued) 4.
Geographical information

The following tables present derived revenue from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

and certain non-current assets information as at 31 December
2023 and 2022, by geographical region.

Hong Kong
£

2023
—m—=

— ==

HK$'000

Revenue from external RENAEP 2 Wi

customers
Non-current assets ERBEE 211,293 EENXYARE
Non-current assets* FmEEE* 3,510 7,687
* Excluded investment in an associate, equity investments at fair

value through other comprehensive income, deferred tax assets,
finance lease receivables, loan receivables from money lending
business and prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

Information about major customers and suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was 23.25% (2022: 28.35%) of
the Group’s total revenue, of which 6.26% (2022: 8.13%) was
made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier or aggregate any five suppliers
that contributed to 10% or more of the Group's total purchase
during the year (2022: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors of the Company, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s customers or suppliers during the year.

2022
—E-CF

HK$'000
TER TAL

78,170 265,367 11,990 12,473 90,160

RESFER (|
i & & B

TREBWNBE-_Z =K _FT -
T A=+ —HALFEEMEE S KRB
IRBEEPZWHFMNR _E_=FEK_F
T CHE+ZA=t+—HEMERESs2ET
IERBEEER -

The PRC Total
H @t

2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECCE ekt =5 el aietd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAL TR TAT

16,264
1020

229,577
21,794

* TEER-—HBZERARZRE BBRHEM
2EBSERATEIEZRAKRE ELE
BMBEE BEHEERERE BHEED
EEZEBRERRBENTIE R kAt
[ R IR

EBFEEXEFRHEERFHNER
FRN-AEEBNAEATPLPHREA H1h
REFHEW2H23.25% (ZF = —F:
28.35%) EA R AEF1H6.26% (=%
ZZF:8.13%) °

FR-BESE - HERKIERNAMHEER
AHEAEFEBARBENI0% KA L (=
T F )

FRAARBEFHEAREFNBE AL
EARR (BARBEEMA REFAR
A BITRAES5% A FIRER) B EN AL
BHEPAMEHEATAEDER
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

5. Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net 5. %éﬁ CHttg AR K E S (EE)

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains/(losses), BRAWA B A R (EE)FHE
net is as follows: ZAMmT
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-_C
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Revenue WA
Revenue from contracts with BB ERE 155 EN
customers within the scope Sy T R
of HKFRS 15 recognised EP A ATA
at a point in time
Commission income from ERLBEEE M WA
securities and futures dealing 8,543
Commission income from placing ez BA 165,331
Performance fee income RIEERWA 740
Management fee income BEREERA 33,894
Sales of goods 55 7 o 9,422
Consultancy fee income EREERA -
Revenue from other sources outside &8 81 7 # & 2E R £ 155 # E 5]
the scope of HKFRS 15 Z B FRA
Gains/(losses) on disposal of equity HEBEBBREQATETEZ
investments at fair value BRARE 2 Wz (EBE)
through profit or loss (4,280)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of debt HEBBBERRATENRZ
investments at fair value BEHKRE (BER) s
through profit or loss (18,332) 9,349
(Losses)/gains on disposal of HEBBBERERIFEIEL
fund investments at fair value EeREZ (BE) &
through profit or loss (433) 349
Dividend income from investment FTHRAEFEFKRE 2 BRBHA
in listed equity securities 94 703
Dividend income from fund FRBHREAFEIRZ
investments at fair value EeREZREKA
through profit or loss 2,485
Interest income from money WE 2 M B WA
lending business 31,908
Interest income from securities margin & HRE © 2 F B U A 13,131
Interest income from debt BERE 2 BWA
investments 6,265
277,840
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 —ZF—

Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net

(continued)

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains/(losses),

net is as follows: (continued)

S A= AR

5. WA-Httr AR WKE " (B1R)

=ECRE )
BREWA - E AR
AT ()

Other income and
gains/(losses), net

Bank interest income

Handling fee income

Change in third party
interests in consolidated
investment fund

Wages subsidies of the

Employment Support Scheme

Rental income

Interest income from
finance lease receivables

Interest income from
other receivables

Gain on modification of lease

Loss on modification of
note payable

Loss on modification of
other receivable

Loss on early repayment of
promissory note

Gain on early repayment of
other receivables

Gain on early repayment of
note payable

Others

Hf AR (B8
T

SRATRIBUA
FEBUA

WA REES Y
E=FMEHED

R R B2 TEMRE
He A
BMEHSRURIAZ
B MA

Hfth & YR IR 2 B B A

MEET W
ENRIERERBE

H UK IR (& AT B 18
REPEEALREBZER
%?%ﬁﬁ@%%%ﬁz
ﬁﬁé%%ﬁ%%Z%é

Hit

2023

TEBE=F

Notes HK$’000

B 5 FBT
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

26(i)(b)

35
24

18 (1,474)

32
35
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2022
S

HK$'000
T

62

320

(3,744)

1,007
1,107

94

(2,422)

(1,502)
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net
(continued)

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains/(losses),
net is as follows (continued):

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The amount represented the net change in net asset value
of consolidated investment fund attributable to third-party
shareholders, which was fully redeemed during the year ended
31 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants
were received by certain subsidiaries in connection with the
new phase of Employment Support Scheme launched in year
2022. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

This amount represented the rental income from leases of
investment properties and sub-leases the properties under
operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated for three to
eight years.

Finance costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

6.

WA HttmARWE (EE)
B (®)

BRWA - E A A R U5 (B518) %58
ZAWMT: (&)

(ii)

(iii)

ZeREF=ZTRREEEERELS
BEFEZFEY ITRHBE_T__F
ToA=tT—HIEFEZHED-

BHE-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—801tFE"
ETHBABIMBMEAR S —FH# L
SRR E R AR 2 BRT A -
ERRSWMB I AETIEHREEE-

ZEREAHEREMERREHERY
ATEEAME 2R FREERE
REENF-

MBE M

Interest on bank borrowings RITEENE
Interest on other borrowings HuEEF S

— margin loans —-RIFLEK
Interest on other borrowings HibEEF S

— secured/unsecured —HHER R

Interest on bank overdrafts
Interest on note payable
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on promissory note
Others

RITHE B
FERRIZF B
HEAEMNE
AR ERZ NS
Hitp

FBERASTWAT :

2023 2022

—E-= =
HK$/000 HK$'000
TET FAET
1,727 1,367
1,562 3,458
6,580 14,383
1,185 1,159
2,141 5,026
261 426
29 -
10 19
25,838
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Loss before income tax 7. BRETBHATER
The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRATERATER IR, (Gt A) B
(crediting): THARESR:
2023 2022
—E-= e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
(restated
Note 2(b))
(57
ffEE2(b) )
Depreciation on e
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) EREEE (MI&E15) 4,955
Property, plant and equipment M - B KR (MeE13)
(Note 13) 1,582
6,537
Employee benefit expenses BRERMNMAX (BREEEHE)
(including directors’ remuneration (BaEG) &8)) -
(Notes (i) and 8)):
Wages and salaries TERF® 130,316
Equity-settled share option RIEEE 2 BREREE F8
arrangements, net (Note 40) (K$5E40) 18,024
Retirement benefit scheme RIRHE T B K
contributions 5,263
153,603
Minimum lease payments under REMEBRTZREHEEMNK
operating leases (Notes (ii) and 15) (B % (i) B215) 4,883
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN B & 2,800
Provision for credit loss allowance WMEXBEEZRRERZ
on loan receivables from money EEBERETIRER
lending business, net 13,153
Reversal of credit loss allowance BHEMEEERBELZ
on trade receivables from securities EWE SRR EEEE
and futures dealing business, net B[O 558 (5,340) (10,664)
Reversal of credit loss allowance on RENBEEEBREBEEZ
trade receivables from placing and EWE SEHRZEEREE
asset management business, net B EFE (542) (15,692)
(Reversal of)/provision for credit FENFIE e R EMEK
loss allowance on financial assets REBEZEREEL
included in prepayments, EEEE (BE) BE
deposits and other receivables, net FHEFER 1,774) 2,486
Written off on other receivables i1 88 L b pE s | 3,244 219
Written off on trade receivables HiiHEKE 5 IR 117 =
Written off on intangible assets WiHmEE 500
Written off on property, WEEME  BE K&
plant and equipment 4
Foreign exchange differences, net VE R =% FE 1,131
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

7. Loss before income tax (continued) 7.
(i)  As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2022: Nil).

(i)  The amount represented short-term lease payments for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 under
HKEFRS 16.

8. Directors’ remuneration 8.
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

MRETEHAIEE (@)

i) M-DZE-_=F+-A=+—H K&
B 17 2 B8 WAL FR AT A 1B D R 2R F
ERABFFEERRI(ZE_—F:
) o

(i) ZeBEREESUBFRSENE6
EREE R =N T —
+-—A=t+—BUHFEZEHHEAEN

o
TA°

EEM:

B ETRA FERAMEHIE383(1)()
b)) RO IERA R AR (HEESF=ER)
HOF2HWECFANESHES O T

2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$’000 HK$"000
TExT FAT
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&7
B EE2(b))

Fees we

Salaries, allowances and e R REYEARN
benefits in kind

Equity-settled share option PRiEEE 2 B 8
arrangements, net

Retirement benefit scheme RRAEFIFT B

contributions

581

1,674

7,129

133

9,517

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 335,140,000
share options were granted (2022: 638,400,000) to the
directors of the Company, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option schemes of the Company,
further details of which are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the grant date, was determined
as at the date of grant. The amounts recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss for the years were
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeqts
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEM=E
Salaries,  Equity-settled Retirement
allowances share option henefit
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
hEEgE
BeoRE  BREZH BKER
wEe  REVER B8 FHEfR WesE
2023 S HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TEL TR TR THET
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) RERTE(ZR)
Ms. Chen Jingxian (Vice Chairman) RemxL (BIXE)
(resigned on 24 July 2023) (R=ZZ=%
tAZTmARE)
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHAE
Ms. Song Caini REERL
Mr. Chen Hongjin Rt eRE
Mr. Li Jing (Chief executive officer) TERE (TTHEH)
Independent non-executive directorst ~ BIFHTES4
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong PEREE
Mr. Wu Ming R#EE
Mr. Lin Guoyan MEREE(R-F-=F
(resigned on 8 March 2023) =ANHEHT)
Ms. Li Meifeng ZEERL (RZTZ=ZF
(appointed on 8 March 2023) ZA\BEZA)
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEME
Salaries, Equity-settled Retirement
allowances share option benefit
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net contributions remuneration
Regss
Heo2l BREZHE RINER
we  REWEN et FHEIfR e
2022 “EoF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFign T Tign Tign TEL
(restated) (restated)
(BE75]) (#2E5))
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) REREE (ER7) - 944 1,783 75 2,802
Ms. Chen Jingxian (Vice Chairman) BERLL (AEE)
(appointed on 21 February (RZZ-ZZ4-A=-+-H
2022 and resigned on 24 July 2023)  BZETR-TZ=F
tAZTMARHE) - 120 1,782 1 1,903
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE - 149 1,782 38 1,969
Mr. Wang Jun (Chief executive officer) ~ EE %4 (1TH %)
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (RZE-—&xA~A#MT) - 400 - 7 407
Ms. Song Caini (appointed on RRELL (RZBZ_F
21 February 2022) ZRZ+—HEZE) - 14 1,782 - 1,796
Mr. Chen Hongjin (appointed on Btets(R-B-—F
21 February 2022) ZAZ+-BEZ) - - - - -
Mr. Li Jing (Chief executive officer) FELE (THRER)
(appointed on 9 December 2022) (W-Z-—%+-RANA
BZE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directorst BYFHITES#
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BERRE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wu Ming R#FEE 71 47 - 12 130
Mr. Liu Hongwei (resigned on AZERE(R-T-_F
22 December 2022) TZAZ+ZREHE) 360 - - - 360
Mr. Lin Guoyan (appointed on WERLE (RZTZZ
22 December 2022 and TZAZ + HEZEL
resigned on 8 March 2023) RZZZ=%=ZAN\BEA) - - - - -
581 1,674 7,129 133 9,517
During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Lin Guoyan BHE_Z_=F+_A=+—RHLEE"
agreed to waive the remuneration for his service in year 2022 MEXEER -_ZE-_=F=A/\HBEHEE
upon his resignation on 8 March 2023. FERERNR T _F2REME -
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RENBEEN THELFRTESZ HM
non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil). FE(ZT-—fF )
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Five highest paid employees 9. AUGESHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FRNAUGESHFMEERE —2ES (=
director (2022: one director), details of whose remuneration T oF —RER) BECHWEFREH
are set out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration R EXHIFES c FRB TG (2= F
for the year of the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid ME)FEARREFZRSFHEES 2B
employees who are not a director of the Company are as THBWT:
follows:
2023 2022
—E== —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&5
BiEE2(b) )
Salaries, allowances and o EMEREYREA
benefits in kind 57,318
Equity-settled share option SR 2 BIRELHE F8
arrangements, net 1,809
Retirement benefit scheme IRURAEFIFT B
contributions 145
59,272

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MENFTIBEZFEEZ & HHE
BAZWT:

2022
S

=

HK$1,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 4,000,001 7T 26,500,000/ 7T
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T £7,500,0007% JT

HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 7T 211,000,000/ 7T
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 7T 213,500,000/ 7T
HK$25,000,001 to HK$30,000,000 25,000,001% 7T 230,000,000/ 7T

N —

During the year, 167,570,000 share options were granted to
one non-director highest paid employee (2022: 159,600,000)
in respect of his service to the Group under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set
out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the grant date, was
determined at the date of grant. The amounts recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the years were
included in the above non-director highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

FR —BIEZECBRFTNEEREAR
A ERENEREEAEENREER
167,570,0001% ( —& = =4 : 159,600,000
MYBERE E—PHFBERGEEMBmE
M40 - R H AR E B R ER
ZEEBRENATFEDIRELBHEE
MRZEFELGRABRRANER ZEE
BEfftALMEEE EaFMEEZHE
BERERA-
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

10. Income tax expense 10. FREHBAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% ERENGHR —BERNAFEBREELEZ
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising HETERBRMIZI6.5% (ZTEZZF:
in Hong Kong during the year. Under the two-tiered profits 16.5% ) Bt & 512 « AR 1% /R AR 6 1115 ¢ = 1
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the E A BEREEEEE2,000000% 5T H &
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits 5 28.25% KB R L - M #2382,000,000
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of P TC 8 B BIHE16.5% BB R B - T &
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates PR AR Il R 45 A5 2 | R B2 B B U R S A
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. BHE16.5% M 5 — B R B
Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC in the current year AREFHEERTEN 2 HBCRIERT
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the PRC ER HEEBzREREN  RAEEEE
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, FREMFREZRITHETE -
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
2023 2022
—EF-= g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Current — Hong Kong BN —F&E
Charge for the year FEXH 2,241
(Over-provision)/under-provision BEFE (BagE)
in prior years BETR 302
2,543
Current — the PRC BIHg—rp
Charge for the year FEXMH 173
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETE 22
195
Deferred tax (Note 20) EIER IR (FEE20) ~
Income tax expense FRIS BRI 2 2,738
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &

10. Income tax expense (continued)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before income tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax position at the effective tax rates is as
follows:

=
RNy

e S

10. FISHAX (@)
85 BB AR A B R A S B B A 7 B AE B
R EERETE 2 BT EHAEEE
ArHEsEY RREEHRHE R
BIERZ WEMT -

5k MY et

S A= AR

2023 2022
—E== —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&5
BizE2(b))
Loss before income tax B FTIS R AT E 1A (133,756) (103,318)
Tax at the statutory tax rates BAEERERGHE ZMIE (26,264) (20,872)
Income not subject to tax R G ON (19,283) (7,486)
Expenses not deductible for tax EEAE 34,605 12,951
Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 17,010 18,520
Tax losses utilised EEABIEEE (4,044) (325)
Temporary difference not recognised KR E 5 = 58 141 366
(Over-provision)/under-provision BEFE GBREEE) BETR
in prior years 399) 324
Tax concession 75 B, (1,671) (575)
Tax relief of 8.25% on first &2,000,00078 7T F& 2R 1 5
HK$2 million assessable profit ZH8.25% 2 IER % (165)
Tax at the effective rate BERMETE HIE 2,738
11. Dividends 11. RE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment RRREBRWEERRAFEIRMNEMRR
of any final dividend for the year (2022: Nil). HERE (ZT - —F &)
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

12. Loss per share attributable to owners of the  12. ZAREFAEEEREE

Company
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share are BREARREIEEDERTIERGE
based on:
2023 2022
—F=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
(restated
Note 2(b))
(&7
ffEE2(b) )
Loss for the year attributable to AAHERERAREEER
owners of the Company, used FTRALREIHES A
in basic and diluted loss per E1EFNEE
share calculations (132,864) (107,425)
Number of shares
KRG EE
2022
—ZE-=
‘000
TR
Shares &)
Weighted average number of AAEERERNREEER
ordinary shares in issue during FTRFAE #TERR
the year used in the basic and INHEF I8
diluted loss per share calculations 16,604,689 15,980,612
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the assumed BE_T_=F+_A=+—HILFE-
conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation to the share SREVEREREZEETBRYER
options has an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per share EAERAARBEXE (T - _F 1
(2022: same). @)
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

13. W% BERRKE

Motor vehicles,

At 1 January 2023:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2023, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary - cost

Written-off of cost

Disposal of a subsidiary — cost

Depreciation charged for the year
(Note 7)

Acquisition of subsidiary -
accumulated depreciation

Written-off of accumulated
depreciation upon disposal

Disposal of a subsidiary -
accumulated depreciation

Exchange realignment

Leasehold furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment
HEYE RE R
gE ZERFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TER
R=B=-=%-A—-R:
B 7R 16,929 6,035
ZEE (14,654) (5,682)
FEFE 2,275 353
RZZEZ_=%—H—H8"
bR REHITER 2,275 353
nNE 84
WEE M B A Rl — AR 29
AR
HE—FHMBAR-RA
FAFEZ L (HFE7)

WM B LR - REHTE
MH & REHTE

HE—RMBLR-ZTE

At 31 December 2023, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2023:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

P& 5 3% )
RZZE-_=F+-A=+—81"

kR ER 1,385
R-Z-_=F+-/A=+—8:

DN 17,106
2ETE (15,721)
REVFE 1,385

Total

st
HK$’000
TER

22,964
(20,336)

2,628

2,628
561
29
(5)
(53)

(1,603)
&)
5

14
(10

1,563

23,096
(21,533)

1,563
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

13. ¥ -BERXE @

13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Motor vehicles,

Leasehold  furniture, fixtures
improvements  and equipment Total
HEWME TE R
& KERZE FORY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET
At 1 January 2022: R-E--F—-A—A:
Cost 7R 23,085 9,089 32,174
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (19,517) (8,459) (27,976)
Net carrying amount REVFE 3,568 630 4,198
At 1 January 2022, net of R-_E-——#—HF—H"
accumulated depreciation HR2FNER 3,568 630 4,198
Additions NE - 82 82
Written-off of cost WSERA (4,925) (2,732) (7,657)
Depreciation charged FAFE L (HE7)
for the year (Note 7) (1,272) (310) (1,582)
Written-off of accumulated ME N ERETITE
depreciation upon disposal 4,925 2,728 7,653
Exchange realignment P 3 S B (21) (45) (66)
At 31 December 2022, net of R-ZE-_—F+=-A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation H&RE2FITER 2,275 353 2,628
At 31 December 2022: RZFZZF+ZA=1+—R:
Cost 7R 16,929 6,035 22,964
Accumulated depreciation REHE (14,654) (5,682) (20,336)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,275 353 2,628
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14. Investment properties

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
%ﬁéﬁi‘%i&% B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ _H=+—HI-F/F

14. REWE

Investment
properties
REWMHE
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and B —_F—-—HA—R - ZT-__%

1 January 2023 +-A=+—B8BKk=_E-_=F—H—H -
Additions NE 17,034
Net increase in fair value NYEE N FRE 703
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZH=+—H 17,737

The Group leases out various shops under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 6 to 8 years (2022: Nil).

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment properties
with a carrying value of approximately HK$17,737,000 (2022:
Nil) were pledged to secure a other borrowing granted to the
Group, which was provided by a former director of a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group (Note 34). The investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further details of which are included in Note 41(a).

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the valuer,
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, to determine
the fair value of investment properties as at 31 December
2023. The change in fair value of investment properties was
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2023. The following table presents the
fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties carried at fair value:—

AEBUEEREr AL HZMEH &
A -VRHABE—REESF (ZF
TTFE) e

R-ZZE-_=F+-_A=+—8B ~AEEKE
HEBEA17,737,0008 7T (S - —F 1 &)
ZIREDECHEHNERAEFTER Z
Elumﬁif'&%féfﬁt%%—%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%

NAElZ i EERME (M sE34) -1 EWEU
KEHE Etﬂﬁﬂ%% FHeoBRE—F
EIEE N EEZAIE

DN ERER
#:;:_$+*H_+*E'%@%I
ﬂt:;@uu u@ﬁﬁﬁ /—Tfy%j{ﬁ'fﬁ’b/(
BEREMEZAR $@i@§_§: F
+TZA=+— Etif’&é%% R E
BEINGEBERTER TRIITAE
BN TEIRZKRENELNTEAEE
I

Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2023 categorised into

R-E_=F+t_A=1t—HBRVEAENEX

Quoted prices in Significant Slgnificant
active markets for other  unobservable
Fair value at identical assets observable inputs inputs
31 December 2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A\ZTZ=F RREER EBEAEMTBER EEALTER
TZA=+—-B EBRTSHE BARE BARE
AN (F—BH) (5-EH) (F=ER)
TET TET TET TET
Recurring fair value measurement ~ ZEM AL EHE
Investment properties: REMR:
— Commercial—PRC —EE-FH 17,737 - = 17,737
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For the year endled 31 December 2023 {2 —F _—=4F 1+ _H=1—HILFZ

14. REWE (®|)

14. Investment properties (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2023 by independent professionally qualified
valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, who
have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors who have recent experience in the valuation
properties in the relevant locations.

The Group’s finance department, which directly reports to
the chief financial officer, review the valuations performed by
the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department holds discussions with the independent
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

During the year, there is no transfer into or out of Level 3.

Valuation techniques
For all investment properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investments properties:—

Valuation techniques  Significant unobservable inputs

rEEZEHERF
RZE-_=F+=-_A=+—8 ~xEEF
EREMFEHRBUEXESERMHEMY
AHEFRABRAGER EBHELAR
BEEMNEMEegE HAELHEMER
AR E L HELR -

AEE AR (ERAE RS EER)
BB HERMET ZME ML
BERRMAEEAREB I (HERMETH® -

FR BEEE=EREANEL-

fhE R
FREREMEREBAMBEM S HAKA
MM HEFAER-

T % B Y A E P A R B R &
TEHABE:

Range or unobservable inputs

fRERM EXATUEERANE EEFFTBEERARE
Commercial properties Income approach Estimated rental value RMB57.7 to
(per square meter/month) RMB434.7
[EEZ2ES WNE fhatie (8¥ K/ A) AR¥57.70%
AE®434.77C
Growth rate (p.a.) 1.9%
FHEEE
Vacancy rate 11.51%
FEE
Reversion Yield 3.9%
s
Term Yield 3.4%
HAPR Yz
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ _H=+—HI-F/F

14. Investment properties (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated using
assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This
method involves the projection of a series of cash flows
on properties interest. A reversion yield is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of
the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is
normally separately determined and differs from the discount
rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of properties. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the reversion
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted to present value.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease)
in the long term vacancy rate and the reversion yield and
term vyield in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change
in the rent growth per annum and the discount rate and an
opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.

14. REWE (#|)

fRE T (&)

BERAE RABEDKBEBEARERE
BESGAMBENNZREE (BER
HEEBENKIKEE)NRBETEHT 2T
%#ﬁ&g%ﬁﬁé\ W—EERERENTE
I ”&/\Iiﬁﬁﬁﬁf\iﬁ\ EIJEE%/MEL‘ME
ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁix*ﬁﬁamuﬁlmmﬂﬁfﬁﬁ o 3R H I
HEBETERHBEEETRNTEE.

REeERBMBERNEELRABEMRHED
BEEEEIDAFANES BT HOBHRE M
RS EENBNEEHET - BEN
BERREIXMETA(IDMEENN—E
’%’l‘f—t)ﬁﬁ%%°Eﬂﬁﬁium§&ﬁ@ﬂﬂlﬂ\?ﬂ
ZE -TAERER  WERIEX  HERE-

HEER REMBSERREMEE R
ERBRAM - ERTHLEEFWA

BEREFRBABERF ZIHFTEREE
— TR ERE

BAHEBELATSHEFERXERKA
@I O ) BEBIREMEN A FEXN
RGO d) REHZEEXRRTREEF
RIEE I O ) BEBIREMEN A FE
RigRmD M) -—KM = shEtES
BEFENBRRNEFHEBSFIERHR
[R 77 ) 28 b & @Aﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁf
3R = 1
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15. Right-of-use assets 15. EAEEE
Premises
LE S
HK$'000
THET
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2022 W-_ZE-—#—HF—H 32,423
Derecognised upon expiration of lease RIS JE WA R IR (1,740)
Derecognised upon sub-leasing RO R R IR (21,468)
Exchange alignment bE 55, 8 (237)
At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and R—E-_—_F+-—_A=+—8"
31 December 2023 —T=F—A—HkK
—E-=%#+=-A=+—H 8,978
Accumulated depreciation: REHIFE:
At 1 January 2022 A—E-__F—HF—H 21,653
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAH (5737) 4,955
Derecognised upon expiration of lease RIS JE WA R IR (1,740)
Derecognised upon termination IR R IFHER (21,180)
Exchange alignment bE 54, 8 (197)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—BX
—ZF-_=%—-HF—H 3,491
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRZH (FE7) 2,993
At 31 December 2023 R-F_=F+-_A=+—H 6,484
Net carrying amount: AR E
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%+=-A=+—H 2,494
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—F+-A=+—H 5,487
The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to use EREEEEASBERNEAS (MF(-F
underlying leased premises as offices for its operations under “ZFRE) ) ARREEEE R H
operating lease arrangements over the lease terms, which is 2EFREREENEERN AR -
2 (2022: 2) years, which are stated at cost less accumulated HE AR ARG ITE R R RBEEE (0
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, and B YR EABENEREHTEE
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. HE -
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other PRI AR R 2 HE & & 2 WF RIS -
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held HE WAL EEMERRSG - HEEETD
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for SREERER -
borrowing purposes.
2023 2022
—E-=5F —ET-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 EATH & 48 M X 9,129 4,883
Total cash outflow for leases (Note) T ER &7 H 4258 (M) 3,676 4,333
Note: P 5T
Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease ZoHEpEHEaEARe RASHS 2K
liabilities. These amounts were presented in operating and financing RELRMERERSRE -
cash flows.
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15. Right-of-use assets (continued)
Leases committed

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2 —F _— =%+ _H=+—HI-F/F

15.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no new lease is
entered by the Group that is not yet commenced (2022: Nil).

16.

FHAEEE @)

oY
HE-_ET-_=F+_-_A=+—RHILtFE"
AREBITEITLHAFABENHTAE(ZF
TTFHE) e

Intangible assets 16. BEEE
Trading right Trademarks
X7 E [GE:
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Cost: RN
At 1 January 2022, RZZE_—_F—RF—QH-
31 December 2022 T -F+-A=+—HBK
and 1 January 2023 —E-=F—HF—H 500 -
Additions NE - 42
Write off (note) Hes (MyaE) (500) -
At 31 December 2023 R-F——F+-HA—-+—H - 42
Accumulated depreciation and A EREE:
impairment:
At 1 January 2022 R-EFE-——F—H—H - -
Provision for impairment BB (500) -
At 31 December 2022 and RZE__F+_A=+—HK
1 January 2023 —E_=F—H—H (500) -
Provision for impairment BB - (42)
Write off (note) wisE (MEE) 500 -
At 31 December 2023 R-F_—#+-_A—-+—H - (42)
Net carrying amount: RRTEFHE

At 31 December 2023

R-ZB_=f+_A=+—H

At 31 December 2022

R-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H

The impairment loss recognised for the year is included in
“administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Note:

During year ended 31 December 2022,

the intangible asset was

of indefinite useful life as it had no expiry date and represented
the Futures Exchanges Trading Right in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, which was fully written off upon the holder of
the right, a subsidiary of the Company applied deregistration on
31 August 2022. On 8 December 2023, the deregistration of the

subsidiary of the Company was completed.

REEHER
[T A e

VR EE R ASRABER

B3

BE-Z- S+ -_A=+—HILFE EFE
EYEIHA HAERUEREH TAHEL
R MEERBR AR Z R 50 - A% HE
MOHEAN (AR —HMNBAR) R T ==
FNA=T—ARFBOSEME - ZEMNEEBHK
WH- R T _=F+ = ANRB BUEEMAR
B EAGE NSS4
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17.

18.

174

Goodwill 17. B8
HK$'000
THETT
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and RZFEZZF—H—H -=ZF==
1 January 2023 +—A=t+—BR=-_FTE-_=%—HA—H -
Acquisition of Dagqji Culture (as defined below) WUl (EERTX) (H5E44)
(note 44) 636
Provision for impairment loss BB EEE (636)

At 31 December 2023

RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H -

ol

Goodwill was arising from the acquisition of ZERI3 1t (JEYI)
B R X A](Daqi Culture (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) (“Daqi Culture”)
on 20 December 2023. For the purpose of impairment testing
on goodwill, the management of the Company has assessed
the value-in-use of Dagi Culture.

The recoverable amount of the operating subsidiary located
in the PRC is determined based on value-in-use calculation.
The calculation uses profit projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Company
covering a 5-year period. The management concluded that
the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill, therefore the Group has recognised a provision for
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$636,000 to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The directors of the Company have not identified any key
assumptions where a reasonably possible change in such
assumptions could cause the carrying amount of goodwill to
exceed the recoverable amount.

Investment in an associate

mMEELEAR_ZE-_=-F+=-A=+H
W ER U CRIDEBER AT ([ERX
b)) - BEEERETRENS AR AEE
e HERUEMFEREEB-

RPEZENHB LR Z U ESREIIR
BEREEFEET KA EERREL
ARmERERENTFRYBEEEN
A TR - B ER AR W E e BERE
BREE AAKECHRBE_FT_=F
TZA=ZT " HLEFERGEBRRRER
7B R (B B 1B 7 5 40636,000/8 7T ©

ARABEZHEZDNEHESEAEHIRN
EPHUEYRHERANEEBE RO SHE
MEAEERR

18. REEE RN T2 RE

Share of net assets

EEEEFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
157,180 87,006

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited F EEBZERER A A
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18. Investment in an associate (continued) 18. REEE R ZRE (#)
Particulars of the associate at the end of reporting period are RB|ERARZBE R ZFHBNOT
as follows:

Place of
Particulars of incorporation/ Percentage of ownership interest
Name issued shares held  operation attributable to the Group Principal activities
EECRTRG  HEREL/ rEEEGEEERER
CES ZHE REHY A= TEER
2022
—E-F
Senworth Limited Ordinary shares  Hong Kong 25 Investment holding and
provision of property
management services

BHRERAFE Limk e 25 BREERREHEDEEERE

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the associate has interests in RZE_=ZFR_ZE-_—_F+-_F=+—

the following companies: H B AR U T ARIRESEE:

Name of subsidiary Place of

directly held by Particulars of incorporation/ Percentage of ownership interest

the associate issued shares held operation attributable to the Group Principal activities

BENREERER BHERTRG HMRL/ AEBEGERE

MEAREHE a1 i 2 ERzEDL TEER

Directly Indirectly
E# %

Shantou Tianshun Property Ordinary shares The PRC 44.10 — Investment holding and
Management Co., Ltd. (2022: 22.50) provision of property
([RIEME]) management services

WEMRIENEEBARRA L@k FE 44.10 - REZFRRRENEERRE

([RIEMZ]) (ZBz=%:
22.50)
Place of Percentage of

Name of associate Particulars of incorporation/ ownership interest

directly held by issued shares held operation attributable to the Group Principal activities

PN:L/ES BECROTRS #ERAL/ AEEELRERE

Z#EE REHY ERzEot TEER

REMEEEEEZ Directly Indirectly

BENRER E# %

Shantou Guangda Weilian Real ~ Ordinary shares  The PRC - 22.05 Property investment
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (2022: 11.25)

WSEM R KR EERE Limk F - 22.05 MERE
BRAHE (ZB-—%:

11.25)
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18. Investment in an associate (continued)

On 27 October 2022, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired 25% of issued share capital of Senworth
Limited, which was engaged in investment holding and
provision of property management services. Senworth Limited,
which is considered a material associate of the Group, is a
strategic partner for the Group, providing access to property
investment market in the PRC.

The total consideration payable by the Group under the
sale and purchase agreement is HK$84,000,000, of which
HK$30,000,000 was settled in cash and the remaining
balance of HK$54,000,000 would be satisfied by issuing
promissory notes to the vendor upon completion of the
acquisition, and which was then fully offset against amount
of HK$54,000,000 owed by vendor to a wholly owned
subsidiary.

On 4 November 2022, pursuant to the conditional sale and
purchase agreement entered with an independent third party
Vendor, Chen Yihao, Morley Way Limited (the purchaser),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has further
acquired 24% equity interests of Senworth Limited. The
vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to acquire
24% of the total issued capital of Senworth Limited for a total
consideration of HK$80,640,000, where HK$70,500,000 was
settled in cash and the remaining balance of HK$10,140,000
was satisfied by issuing promissory note.

On 31 March 2023, the acquisition was completed and a
promissory note which bears 3% interest per annum was
issued on 31 March 2023 and will mature on 31 March 2025.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
settled the promissory note in full at HK$10,140,000 and a
loss on early repayment of promissory note of approximately
HK$1,474,000 has been recognised as other gains/(losses)
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31
December 2023, the Group held 49% of equity interests in
aggregate in Senworth Limited.

176  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited #3Z & EiZ R H R A 7

18.

REBELATZRE (@)
RN-_E-——F+A=-++H A2728
WEBATMBERERARCBTRAY
25% HIBRHERBERRIBHYES
BRE-BRARERATRRAASEAER
ESHRLAT HAEE BEAEY
PR AREERREATREMERED
SR o

BEEERZ ASBEENREBLEAR
84,000,000/% 7T * & #30,000,000% 7T bA
WL EE 5T 454,000,000/ 7T 5 E
WHETKEERAEFETEALEEL
N ZPERERESERE2ENB AT
54,000,0007%8 JT 7B HUKE

R-Z-—F+—AMNB  BEE—Z5F
VEZHBEFRERI LN EKEES
W AR E 22 EWE D A Morley Way
Limited (B ) — S WEHR B ER QA
24% rE-BEHRELEME A RERE
BN BERARAS H24% B EITRA ERK
{8 580,640,000/ 7T * H #170,500,0007% 7T
BB S EE - 88 T4 8210,140,0007%8 7T JA
BITARERZ A&

MW-Z-_=FE=F=+—HB WEZEK
NEMEIN oA A EBER T Z=F
—RA=+—RA#ETUHER=_F_AF=A
=+ —HEHS - RNEHE-_ZT-_=ZF+=-A8
= t+—HIEFE - A2QF)A10,140,0007% 7T
BHEEALEERRAEREALEZEERY
1,474,000/ TR B E NER B B R R ER
BEMKE S (BE) RZTE_=ZF+=
B=+—HB ARG HEBEERHERA
F149% A% HE o



18. Investment in an associate (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B2 —F _—=4F+ _H=—+—HILFZ

18. RBHERTZ2RE (@)
Summarised financial information in respect of the associate, BEANTRMAERAFRZHMETBERT
Senworth Limited, as extracted from its financial statements at B ERRERRIUMBERE EHME

the end of reporting periods are summarised below: wmr:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Current assets MBEE 6,009 2,190
Non-current assets, included ERBEE BEREE AR
investment in an associate 2B 349,228 381,321
Current liabilities, included amount B EE  BIFENAEE
due to the Group Z I8 (40,355) (35,488)
Revenue YA 379 8,550
Loss from continuing operations KERBREXBZER 1,574 (574)
Other (losses)/gains HAb (F518) ke (25,774) 209,859
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive F R (E518) & F &
income for the year ENETRER (27,248) 209,380

Calculation of gains on bargain purchase recognised in the REBEE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HILEFE"
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended EHUWEm R e ER R ERZ ZEWEK
31 December 2022, arising from the acquisition as below: mafEOT:
2022
—E=-=
HK$’000
FET
Net assets of the associate at acquisition WIS B & N R 2 B EFE 347,540
Equity interest acquired in Senworth Limited B REM AR AR 2 A 25%
Net assets acquired Frig g & EFE 86,885
Investment cost REKAR (84,000)
Gain on bargain purchase = (B s s 2,885
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18. Investment in an associate (continued) 18. REEERFA 2 RE (m0)
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of the interest in the FEMBRRNRBER N E R A2 S
associate recognised in the consolidated statement of financial REEHERNAT
position as below:

2023 2022
—Eg-= —ZE=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
At the beginning of period iNEY) 87,006 -
Gain on bargain purchase (Note) H B (M) = 2,885
Share of (losses)/profits of an DiE—RBE QR 2
associate (Note) (E18) /587 (MsE) (8,962) 121

Investment cost BREMA 79,136 84,000
At the end of period RERR 157,180 87,006
Note: P ET
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the gain of bargain REBEZE_Z__F+A=+—BLEFE R
purchase in amount of approximately HK$2,885,000 arisen at i B HIE &m0 B B I 492,885,000 TTE
acquisition date has been included as share of (losses)/profits of an HROE—HEBERR (BE) SRMAK.
associate.

19. Equity investments at fair value through other 19. EBH M2 E WK FIR A FET

comprehensive income

ReBARE

2023 2022
—m— = -

=== —_=< ——

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT

Equity securities listed in BB L TIRAE?
Hong Kong, at fair value /NS R

2,638 392,073

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

The fair values of the listed equity securities investments were
determined based on the quoted market closing prices on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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19. Equity investments at fair value through other 19. EBH M2 E KR ZE A FESI

comprehensive income (continued) RZIRAIRE (@)
An analysis of investment portfolio is as below: REEEDTWT :
2023 2022
—E-= —E--

Stock code Name of securities HK$’000 HK$'000 Yo*
RBRE BHEHE FHERT THETT %*
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 2,635 18,234 0.74

RIFEAZERER AT
412 Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited 373,839 1.09

s ERERBR QA

392,073

* Percentage of shareholding in the listed securities held by the
Group
A Percentage less than 0.01%

During the year, the Group did not receive any dividend from
these investments (2022: HK$633,000 and recognised in the
Revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group sold
part of its equity investments to provide for general working
capital. These shares were sold at an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$167,714,000 and resulted in a cumulative
gains of approximately HK$44,087,000 which was transferred
from equity investment fair value reserve to accumulated
losses.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group sold
65,356,000 ordinary shares of Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings
Group Limited to three independent third parties for a total
consideration of HK$169,272,000. At the date of execution,
the fair value of the equity investment is approximately
HK$313,055,000. Details of the transactions were disclosure
in announcement of the Company dated 4 November
2022, circular of the Company dated 20 January 2023 and
announcement of the Company dated 15 February 2023.

* REBFFLEMESFIBER DL

A AN R0.01%

RAFE AKBVTEBEZFRERNME
ARz B (—F = — 4 : 633,000/ 7T » WR4R
EHRHFRZ WA RER) -

REBEE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—BI-FE"
AREBHEILD B AL E NIRE—REE
B oZEE R MDAEEL167,714,00078
JC EBEHIR — % 25 EE 444,087,00078
TEERARENTFEFEERE R51E

Be

REEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIEFE"
AEBR=%BIE=FTHE Lo ERE
B G R A F165,356,0000% L @A BRE A
169,272,000/8 7L R TTHE - RAKRE
NFE# A313,055,0008 T - BEX 52
HERARGHEA-_ZT-_—_F+— AN
BzRAE AARBHA-_ZT _=F—A48
“tHZBEEARRBHA-_ZT =
“At+TREBZAEFRHE-
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19. Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income, with
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,635,000 (2022:
HK$392,070,000) and control over Charged Listed Securities
(as defined below) of approximately HK$396,711,000 (2022:
Nil), have been pledged to secure the other borrowings
granted to the Group (Note 34(c)).

* On 24 October 2022, Central Wealth Infrastructure
Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Vendor/Chargor”), being the shares
owner of the listed securities, has entered into a share
charge arrangement with Globally Finance Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of a company with its ordinary
shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely Future World Holdings Limited, to charge
95,061,000 shares of the ordinary share of Shandong
Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited)
(the “Charged Listed Securities”) in favour of Globally
Finance Limited (the “Trustee/Lender”) (the “Share
Charge Arrangement”). Under Vendor’s instruction,
who could intend the Trustee, to enter into share sale
and purchase agreements to transfer the Charged Listed
Securities to purchasers, the net proceeds shall be in
or towards the payment to settle the loan and interest
receivable owed by the Company to the Lender (the
“Loans”) until the Loans are discharged.

On 3 November 2022, 29,705,000 shares of the
Charged Listed Securities had been transferred to two
independent third parties at the considerations of an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$45,746,000 to
be set-off against the Loans.

On 4 November 2022, Vendor further entered into the
conditional sale and purchase agreements with three
independent individuals (the “Purchasers”), each of the
Purchasers respectively pursuant to which the Vendor
agreed to sell and the Purchasers agreed to acquire,
an aggregate 65,356,000 ordinary shares of Charged
Listed Securities held by the Vendor as at the date of
the sale and purchase agreements (“Sale Shares”) for
considerations of an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$169,272,000.
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19.

ZEBEMEZEKFZRATFES
BzBRAKRE @)

R-ZZE-_ZF+-_A=Z+—H 4A%£H
AR {E 492,635,000 0 (—Z 2 = — 4 :
392,070,000/ L) FE B E M 2 E W EIE R
FEINEZRAEERAECER EME
A5 (EHER T X)#396,711,0008 L (=
TS BB ERFIEREEER 2 G
BZER (WiE34c) °

* R-EBE - —F+/-+WH AAQF
BB RAIFEEZRERRRA A
([BR/E8Al) (EALETEEN
iR A) Bt REHERAT (—
MERBEPE ST ER Eh 2 Aa &
REFIEBERARZEEHBAR)
RN — R E IR LA REF S
ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂ((&%k/ﬁ%knﬁg

FAERLEEREERR A (8]
BMPELESEcREEERAA)
95,061,000 @M ([EEH LT
EFEl) (IRPEHRZHE]) -BES
FHIER(BEAAIETEA)GT LR
HEEMZEARE T EECERET
BE MEBREFHEBARRSAES
EARRNBERETHER L EWFE
(B Z2HR BEEEHEEE-

pr - —~- ¥+ —HA=ZH"
29,705, oooH BEEREMESRDE
ETREBIE=H HREHBE
45,746,00078 70 LAIKSEE R -

7

RZE-_—_F+—AWMH BHE=
HEIEAN(TES]) (Ki%i‘éi 5 )5
AT EBEGRHEEEmSE B BA
AEHEMEFREREEIREE
HEBHIFANDER FmEEE T
65,356,000 L@ ([SHER S ]) -
BREXA169,272,0008 7T
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19. Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (continued)

As the relevant percentage ratio(s) exceed 25% but all
relevant percentage ratios are below 75%, the Sale Shares
contemplated thereunder in aggregation with the previous
disposals constitute a major transaction on the part of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and are
subject to the announcement and the shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

On 15 February 2023, ordinary resolutions passed in the
Special General Meeting to approve, confirm and ratify sales
of Sale Shares, to the Purchasers at a total consideration of
HK$169,272,000. Details of the transaction regarding the Sale
Shares were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 4 November 2022, circular of the Company dated 20
January 2023 and announcement of the Company dated 15
February 2023.

On 3 October 2023, the Sale Shares has been executed
according to the sale and purchase agreement, of which
partial of the total consideration in amount of approximately
HK$34,350,000 has been received, resulted outstanding
receivable of approximately HK$134,922,000 being recorded
under other receivables. As the consideration has not been
fully received yet, the Charged Listed Securities have not been
transferred to the Purchasers and are still under control of
the Group, relevant Charged Listed Securities are still being
pledged for other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 as
disclosed in Note 34(c).

19.

ERHEMEZHRFZZEATFES
BRZBAKE (@)
BAEEE S LR B@25% B AEEE
S H RIGIER75%  BRE T2 & R Ip &R
SR HEEEASHER AR TN LTHEA
BUBSE Ty —BIEX 5 BMETFEH
BRIBI4BE T2 NS RIRE I EMERE -

RZEBE-_ZF_A+EHB BEEFXE
BRLEBRAZREAME ERANERAE
FIEEHEER M BNREAR169,272,000/8
T BREERNMRT S ZHBRARA A
AT —HF+—ANHZAE AR
AEA-_ TS -_—F—A-_tHZRBEX
AR HPA-ZE-_=ZF_A+HHZA

ST

R-ZT-=FE+HF=H #HERNHDERE
BEWZERT BRI BRE
4934,350,00078 7T+ B bt R U B A & U SR IE
#9134,922,000/%8 7T 2 70 A E Ath FE U 3R TH
AN FE34(c) FT I - AR (E 18 R B
WE ZESeEftmESsMAEETE
FoANEAEEES BEEEER ETMES
NRZEBEZ=F+-_A=+—B1NEAME
R
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20. Deferred tax

20. EERIE

Deferred tax assets EEMREEE
Credit loss
allowances of
other financial
assets
Hitbe@EE
FEEERE
HK$’000
FAET
Gross deferred tax assets BRERIBEERE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and RZE-_—_F—HA—RA ==
1 January 2023 +-A=+—BEk-ZE-_=F—H—H 110
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement SRz A A EBFRZ
of profit or loss during the year (Note 10) EFERIR (KIEE10) (76)
At 31 December 2023 RZEBE-_=F+=-A=+—H 34

Subject to the approval by relevant tax authority, the Group
has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$3,250,470,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$3,244,174,000) that are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Such unused tax losses are subject to the approval
of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”). Tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. During September
and October 2022, the IRD issued statement of loss for the
assessment year of 2021/2022 to certain Hong Kong group
companies and showed the tax losses carried forward were
approximately HK$3,149,334,000.

The Group has unused tax losses arose in the PRC, which
will be expired in 5 years, of approximately HK$127,334,000
(2022: HK$90,047,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
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21. Loan receivables from money lending business

21. HERBELE ZBRKRER

2023 2022
—E-= —=E-

HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT

Loan receivables UK E R
B EEEIERE

Less: credit loss allowances

438,619 433,419
(60,713) (60,590)

B FERNERED

Less: non-current portion

377,906 372,829
(30,608) (124,911)

Current portion BUERER 5>

347,298 247,918

As at 31 December 2023, the gross amounts of
loan receivables represented loans of approximately
HK$438,619,000 (2022: HK$433,419,000) granted by
the Group to a number of independent third parties. The
loans bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to 7% (2022:
5% to 7%) per annum and were repayable within three
years from the date of drawdown (2022: three years from
the date of drawdown). The grants of these loans were
approved and monitored by the Group’s management. The
gross loan balances of approximately HK$267,485,000
(2022: HK$45,278,000) were past due and approximately
HK$171,134,000 (2022: HK$388,141,000) were not past
due at the end of the reporting period for which there was no
recent history of default.

The Group holds collaterals or other credit enhancements
over its loan receivables balance non past due balance
of approximately HK$171,134,000 at market price of
approximately HK$291,512,000 (2022: HK$330,988,000),
including charge of properties located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, listed securities in Hong Kong and equity interest in the
unlisted Hong Kong and PRC entities of the borrowers. The
carrying amount of the loan receivables approximates their
fair values. As at 31 December 2023, collaterals at market
price of approximately HK$143,722,000 are held for credit-
impaired loan receivables (2022: Nil).

%:7:_¢+ A=+—H ERkE

BBEAEBERTZEZBILE= Ez
,;TA%7438619000/%7E(_2?\:: :
433,419,000/ 7T) » B F L F F XN F5%
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21.

Loan receivables from money lending business
(continued)

On 15 January 2024, Top Billion Finance Limited (“Top
Billion”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as lender and customers A, B and C as borrowers (“the
Borrowers”) entered into the Facility Letters (“the Facilities”)
pursuant to which Top Billion has agreed to grant the Loan in
the amount of HK$66,000,000 to each customer for a term
of three years from the effective date on 15 January 2024 and
bears interest of 7% per annum, which is determined with
consideration of the existing borrowing costs of the Group
ranging from 5.75% to 6.1%. The original facility of customer
A, B and C were past due on 16 December 2023, 20
December 2023 and 26 December 2023, and the outstanding
principal as at 31 December 2023 were approximately
HK$75,000,000, HK$75,000,000 and HK$71,894,000,
respectively. The Facilities are pledged by properties located
in the PRC and unlisted equities with carrying amount as
at 31 December 2023 of approximately HK$42,503,000,
HK$42,179,000 and HK$59,040,000, respectively. The
mature date of the Facilities is 14 January 2027. The details
of the Facilities were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 15 January 2024.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Borrowers have settled
the principal amounts of approximately HK$9,000,000,
HK$9,001,000 and HK$6,071,000, respectively. The
outstanding balances after such subsequent repayment
is approximately HK$66,000,000, HK$65,999,000 and
HK$65,823,000, respectively, which are equal or below
the renewed Facilities amount. Taking into consideration of
the Facilities described above and settlement subsequent to
the reporting period, the provided ECL has been reduced to
approximately HK$60,713,000 at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2023, loan receivables included an
amount due from Senworth Limited, which is considered
a material associate of the Group, of approximately
HK$5,200,000 (2022: Nil), arising from money lending
business, bears interest at 7% (2022: N/A) per annum and will
be matured on 23 April 2024. The Group holds collateral of
equity interest in an unlisted Hong Kong entity at market price
of approximately HK$177,121,000.
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